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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Ciudad ' Patria

November 30, 2015

Honorable Mayor Carmen Yulín Cruz Soto,

Members of the Municipal Legislature and Constituents
Municipality of San Juan,

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

We are pleased to submit this Comprehensive A-nnual Fi¡rancial Report of the Municipality of San Juan,

Commonwealth of Puerto fuco (the Municipality), as of and for the ñscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Responsibility for both, the accuracy of the data and the completeness and faimess of the presentation,

including all disclosures presented in this report, rests with the Municipality's management. Unfortunately,
the Employees Reti¡ement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico did not provide the Municipality
the info¡mation needed to adopt a new accounting standard that changes accounting and financial reporting
for persion costs, which could have a significant impact on the Municipality's financial statements,

disclosures and required supplementary information. The omitted adjustments and disclosures led to a

qualified opinion by our extemal auditors over the fai¡ness of the Municipality's financial statements in
accordance rvith U.S. GAAP. Except as required by the neu' accounting standard described before, all
disclosures necessary to enable readerc to gain an understanding of the Municipality's financial acliüties
have been included.

BACKGROUND INT'ORMATION AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The Municipality is the largest municipality, principal seapof, and main govemmental, financial, academic,

cultural, and tourism center of Puerto fuco.

The Municipality's goveÍment is composed of a Mayor, and a Municipal Legislature of 17 members

elected in general elections every four years. The Mayor is responsible for establishing and carrying out the
policy-making, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the municipal government and for appointing
the senior municipal officials ofthe Municipality's departments. The Municipal Legislature is responsiblg
among other matters, for approving ordi¡ances and resolutions, including the annual operating budget of
the Municipality.

The Municipality assumes either partiai or fu11 responsibility for providing services to its citizens related to
public safety, urban affairs, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, education,
economic development, and other general services to its citizens.

There are approximately 395,000 inhabitants, according to the 2010 U.S. Census, with a population density

of approximately 3,189 residents per square kilometer, making it the most densely populated municipality
in Puerto Rico. The Municipality has land area 123.85 square kilometers; it has 18 political subdivisions,
or wards, and is divided into four (4) major districts: (1) Old San Juan, (2) Hato Rey, (3) Río Piedras and

(4) Santurce.
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Old San Juan is a compact historic district, cultural center and major tourist attraction of Puerto Rico. Hato

Rey is the main banking and financial services center of Puerto Rico having the headquarters ofall major
banks. fuo Piedras is the transportation hub for connections with the rest ofthe Island and Puerto Rico's
principal educational center having the main campus ofthe University ofPuerto Rico. Santurce is a center

for government and private offices.

According to statistics published by the Goverffnent Development Bank of Puerto fuco, the average family
income (AF[) in San Juan was approximately §17,700 for 2015.

Puerto Rico's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and Gross National Product (GNP) have increased steadily

over the past decade. The GDP is the total of consumer, investment and government spending, plus the

value of exports minus value of imports. GNP is the GDP added to income accruing to residents with
investments abroad, minus income eamed in domestic markets accrued to investors living abroad. In Puerto

fuco, the GDP exceeds the GNP because of the large amount of investment from the USA in the local
economy. Nominal GDP and GNP according to the most recent report projected amounts to S 103.8 million
and $69.2 million, respectively.

San Juan is the most impoñant socioeconomic center in Puerto Rico. It accounts for 9.7% ofPuerto Rico's
population according to the latest figures from the Bureau Census. The unemploltnent rate in San Juan as

of June 30, 2015 was 7.7%0, which compares favorably with the unemployment for Puerto Rico, which
stood at 12.6% for the same period.

The economic base ofthe Murúcipality is diversified among the financial sector, wholesale and retail trade,

small and medium sized business, shipping, tourism and the meetings and conventions industry.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying basic financial statements present, in an easily readable and efficiently organized way,

the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-t1pe activities, each major

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Municipality, as ofJune 30, 2015, the respective

changes in financial position of the governmental activities, the business{ype activities, each major fund,

and the aggregate remaining fund information, and the cash flows ofthe proprietary fund for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP).

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The management of the Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal
controls to ensure that the assets of the Municipality are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and that

adequate accounting data is compiled for the preparation of its basic fi¡ancial statements in conformity with
GAAP.

The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these obj ectives

are met. The concept ofreasonable assurance recogrLizes that: (1) the cost ofan intemal control should not

exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires significant
estimates and judgments by management.

The Mrmicipality receives financial assistance in the form of grants and entitlements from the govemments

of the United States of America and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Commonwealth). Receipt of grants

is generally conditioned upon compliance with several terms and conditions of the grant agreements and

applicable laws and regulations, including the expenditure of ¡esou¡ces for eligible purposes. Asa



result, the Municipality is also responsible for ensuring that intemal controls are in place to ensure that

processes related to these financial assistance grants and entitlements are in compliance with a1l applicable

laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY AND FISCAL POLICIES AND INITIATryES

The fiscal year of the Municipality begins on July 1. The Mayor is required by law to submit an annual

balanced budget of revenues and expenditures of its operations pursuant to Chapter 7 of the Autonomous

Municipalities Law for the approval ofMunicipal Legislature. Appropriations made for any fiscal year shall

not excied the total estimated revenues, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal year ur ess

the imposition oftaxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided by law.

Budgetary control resides at the functions/program level within the general flrnd. The Municipality also

maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one method of maintaidng budgetary control. The arxtual

budgets include an estimate of revenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and

regulatiors existing at the time the budgets are prepared.

During the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2015, this municipal administration has taken the necessary fiscal

initiatives and extensive budgetary controls that allows the Municipality to firish for the third year with a

surplus in the general fund.

During fiscal year 2015, the Municipality borrowed $89.4 million from the Govemment Development Bank

for Puerto Rico and commercial banks through the issuance of Series A of the 2014 Municipal General

Obligation Notes amounting to $53.2 million and $36.2 million respectively, to finance the acquisition,

construction, and imprcvement of capital assets.

The Municipality continues to be focused on various efforts to increase the Municipality's recurring

revenue base. Redevelopment strategies are planned and executed in areas where economic activity and

residential levels have plummeted. lnitiatives include the strengthening ofprocedures to identifu, audit and

collect tax debt and prevent or detect tax evasion.

The objectives ofthese controls and initiatives were to stabilize the financial position, results ofoperations

and cash flows of the Municipality while ensuring compliance with legal proüsions embodied in the annual

appropriated budgets approved by the Municipal Legislature.

More detailed information about the Municipality's budget and fiscal policies can be found in the

accompanying management's discussion and analysis (lVfD&A), the notes to the basic financial statements,

and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented in the Financial Section.

PROSPECTS FOR TITE FUTURE

The Municipality is comnitted to pursue solutions to improve the competitive economic performance and

the quality oflife for its residents. The Municipality's economic development program includes initiatives

aimed at producing more diversifred and sustainable economic development. Five important elements of
these initiatives are the following: (1) developing a world-class infrastructure, while encouraging private

investment with innovative financial models and agile, effective evaluation processes; (2) accelerating the

Municipality's entry into the knowledge economy by creating a center for excellence in biotechnology,

engineering and computing; (3) promoting local enterprise and supporting local businesses by providing

innovative financing alternatives and access to domestic and foreip markeis; (4) transforming the

Municipality's government, without the need to layoff or privatization, through effective consolidation of

III



municipal agencies and decentralization functions to offer frslclass services to all citizens in a sensible,

effective and agile manner; and (5) refocusing strategic projects related to the citizens' health.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The accompanying basic financial statements include the capital assets of the Municipality. A discussion

and more ditailed information about capital assets can also be found in the accompanying MD&A and the

notes to the basic fmancial statements.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Puerto Rico Municipal Financing Law of 1996 (Law 64-1996), limits the amount of debt service that

can be incurred by the Municipality with respect to issued or guaranteed debt to 10 percent ofthe total

assessed value of the property located within the Municipality, plus the balance ofthe ad valorem taxes in

the debt service fund, for bonds payable and bond anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of
property taxes restricted for debt service. The Municipality is in compliance with the debt limitation

iequirements at June 30, 2015. See the computation ofthe legal debt margin in the statistical section ofthis

report. More detailed information about long-term obligations can be found in the notes to the basic

financial statements.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR AND FISCAI AGENT

The principal functions of the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto fuco (GDB) are to serve as

financial advisor to and fiscal agent for the Municipality in corinection with the issuance ofbonds and notes.

GDB is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Chapter X of the Basic Standards Regulation issued by the Puefo Rico Municipal Affairs Commissioner

requires the Municipality to have an annual financial audit of its basic fmancial statements performed by

independent certified public accountants. This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report has the intention

to fulfill such requirements.

HLB Parissi, PS.C was selected to perform the independent audit of the Municipality's basic financial

statements, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with govemment auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America. The goal of the independent audit was to

provide reasonable asswance that the basic financial statements ofthe Municipality for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2015 are fairly stated in accordance with GAAP. The independent auditors' report on the

accompanying basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report and includes a

qualified opinion due to a GAAP departure resulting from financial i¡fo¡mation not provided by the

Employees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco causing the Municipality to be unable

to ¡ecord and disclose the pension costs in accordance with new accounting standard related to pension

costs.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation ofthis report required the collective efforts of several municipal officials and employees

of our Department ofFinance, and our financial and management consultants. We sincerely appreciate the

professionalism and dedication of these individuals. Due credit should also be given to the Honorable

Carmen Yulín Cruz Soto, Mayor, for her unwavering support and commitment to better and improved fiscal

and administrative policies.
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INDEPENDENT AT]DITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the Municipal Legislature and Constituents

Municipality of San Juan
San Juan, Puefo Rico

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of San Juan,
San Juan, Puerto Rico (the Municipality) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the relared notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Re sp ons ibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheüer the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers i¡temal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures üat are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accountilg estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

650 lVr¡ñoz Rrve.a Ave Su le 512 San Jra¡ FR CC9IE-11r9 'P0 Box 195607 San Jtai PR 0C919-5607

Phone 787.641 98!.1 'Fax 787 64r 98Cg '){¡rx crr ssicpa..orn



Basis Jor Qualifieil Opinion on Governmental Actiüties anil Note Disclosure Regarding Pensions
As discussed in Notes 1 and 12 to the basic financial statements, the Municipaüty has not implemented the
requirements of Statement No. 68 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment ofGASB Statement No.27. Accordingly,

1. The Municipality has not been able to determine and account for its proportionate share of net
pension obligation, deferred inflow of resources and deferred outflow of resources related to
pension costs and,

2. The Municipality has not recognized the effect of current period changes in net pension obligation,
deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources as these relate to pension costs.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that pension related
liability, defened outflow of resources, deferred inflow of resources, as applicable, be recognized in
accordance with the parameters established by Statement No. 68, as well as the effect of current period
changes of the aforementioned amounts that must be recognized in pension expense during the current
period. Recognition of these amounts would increase liabilities, increase deferred outflow of resources,
increase deferred inflow of resources, increase the deficit, and change the pension expenses of the
govemmental activities. The amounts by which this departure would affect liabilities, deferred outflow of
resources, deferred inflow of resources, def,rcit, and expenses of the govemmental activities has not been
determined.

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements do not disclose the pension cost information
required by Statement No. 68. In our opinion, disclosure of this information is required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Quaffied Opinion
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described above in the Basis for Qualifred
Opinion on Government Activities and Note Disclosure Regarding Pensions paragraph, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
govemmental activities of the Municipality of San Juan as of June 30, 2015 and the respective changes in
financial position thereof for the year then ended i¡ accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Anmodifieil Opinions
ln our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information ofthe Municipality of San Juan as ofJune 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supple mentary I nformation Omined
The Municipality has omitted the Schedule of the Municipality's Proportionate Share of the Net pension
Liability, and the Schedule of M unicipality's Contributions to the Employees' Pension-ptan, information
that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part;f the basic
financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standa¡ds Board who ionsiders it to be
an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic hnancial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion on the basic frnancial statements is nái affected
by this missing information.

Req ui red S upp I e me n ta ry I nfo rmat ion
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5 thiough 22 and't4 thiough 76
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, althorigh not a part ofthe basic
financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board-, who cánsiders it to be
an essential part of ñnancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally aciepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methoás of pieparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our iriquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audiiof the basic frnácial siarements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

üher Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions of the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statisrical section are presented for purposes of adáitional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate dircctly to the underlying accounting and othe. ,ecords used to prepare
the basic f,rnancial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedur". 

"p!li"d 
in

the audit of the basic financial statements and cefain additional procedures, inótuaing comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlyi¡g accounting and other records usld to irepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional prócedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are faüly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not 

"*pr"ss 
an opinion or piovide any

assurance on them-
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San Juan, Puerto Rico
November 30, 2015
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fisral Year Ended June 30, 2015

The Management of the Municipality of San Juan (the Municipality) provides this
discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial position and results of
operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Since this discussion and analysis is designed to focus on the current frscal year
actiüties, resulting changes and currently known facts, we suggest reading it in
conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements.

Financial Highlighrs

. Total assets increased $6.5 million (0.57c increase) during the current fiscal year and amounted to
$ 1.23 billion at June 2015.

o Total liabilities increased $28.6 million (2.5% increase) during the current fiscal year and amounred
to S 1.18 billion at June 2015.

o Total deferred inflows of resources decreased $8.6 million (7 .9% decrease) during the current fiscal
year and amounted to $ 100.6 million at June 2015.

o Total net position (deficit) increased $13.4 million (35.970 increase) during the current fiscal year
and amounted to $50.7 million (deficit) at June 2015.

o Total revenues decreased $18.7 million (2.7% decrease) during the current frscal year and
amounted to $665.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 2015.

. Total expenses increased $8.8 million (1.37c increase) during the current f,iscal year and amounted
to $678.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 2015.

o Total fund balances of governmental funds increased $47.5 million (25.3Vc increase) duúng the
current fiscal year and amounted to $235.3 million at June 2015.

¡ Total fund balances of the general fund increased $ 1 5 .9 nillion (7 4 .9% increase) during the current
fiscal year and amounted to $37.0 million at June 2015.

. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Municipality borrowed $36.2 million from a
commercial bank and $53.2 million from the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico to
finance the acquisition, construction, and improvement of capital assets.

o During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the debt service fund transferred its total excess cash
with frscal agent amounting to $26.2 million to the general fund.

This discussion and analysis is required supplementary information to the basic financial statements and is
intended to serve as introduction to the basic financial statements of the Municipality. The basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: ( I ) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to basic financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary



Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Management's Di s cus sion and Analy s is ( U naudited )
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

information (budgetary schedule) and additional supplementary information (combining financial
statements) in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide users of the firnancial statements with a
broad overview of the Municipaüty's finances using the accrual basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all ofthe Municipality's assets and tiabilities, and
deferred inflows/outflows of resources a¡d their difference reported as net position. Fluctuations in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is improving
or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net position changed
during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and ex¡renses are
reported in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The Statement of
Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are funded by the
govemment's general tax and other revenue sources. This is intended to summadz€ and simplify the users'
analysis of cost of various governmental services.

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality that are mostly
supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues (govemmental activities) from other functions that are
financed with debt that is secured by a pledge of the net revenues from rent service charge of the
I¡temational Center. The govemmental activities include general govemment, public safety, urban affairs,
culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic development and education.

Fund Financial Statemenls

The fund ñnancial statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant funds,
not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has two categories of funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds a¡e used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govemment-
wide frnancial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information is useful in evaluating the Municipality's near term financial requirements.

Because the focus of govemmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide fulancial statements,
it is useful to compare the i¡formation presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for govemmental activities in the government wide financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic
financial statements may better understand the long+erm impact of the Municipality's near term financial
decisions. The govemmental funds Balance Sheet and the govemmental funds Statement of Revenues,
Expendirures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
govemmental funds and governmental activities.
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Proprietary fund - Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that operate more like those of
business enterprises. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the govemment-wide frnancial
statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accountilg. There are no
reconciling items between the govemment-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial
statements. The only proprietary fund operated by the Municipality is the Intemational Center. The basic
proprietary fund financial statements can be found immediately following the govemmental funds fi¡ancial
statements.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide financial statements and the funds financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information. This
section includes a budgetary comparison schedule, which includes reconciliation between the statutory fund
balance for budgetary purposes and the fund balance for the General Fund as presented in the governmental
fund fi nancial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

Condensed net position information is presented below (in thousands):
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The Municipality's total assets amounted to $1.23 billion at June 30, 2015, reflecting an increase of S6.5
million when compared with the prior fiscal year. The increase in total assets is mainly due to the net effect
of an increase of $33.6 million in cash and cash equivalents, pafially offset by decreases of $ 13.8 million
and $12.4 million in capital assets and accounts receivable, respectively.

The increase of $33.6 million in cash and cash equivalents is the net result of the current fiscal year cash

inflows related to the proceeds on the issuance of notes amounting to $89.4 million, partially offset by the
current year capital outlays of $33.6 million, the net decrease in net position of $ 13.5 million, the decrease
of $3.4 million in accounts and intergovemmental payables, and the decrease of $7.7 million in the cunent
portion of long-term obligations.

The decrease of $ 13.8 million in capital assets is due to the net effect of the current year additions of $33.6
million and the current year depreciation expense of §47.4 million. The current year additions are mainly
related to constructions in progress of various capital projects amounting to $17.2 million, including the

reconstruction of the Luis Muñoz Marín Pa¡k, the El Señorial City Sports Complex, the Kids Zone Park,
and the improvement of general infrastructure assets such as several municipal streets and roads. The
current year additions also i¡clude capital outlays related to the acquisition of vehicles for the municipal
police department, equipment for several municipal depafments and the improvement of various buildings
and sites in the aggregate amount of $16.4 million, including those related to Paseo Las Curias, the

Children's Center of Aquatic Therapy, and the Pediatric Emergency Area at the Municipal Hospital.

The decrease of $12.4 million in accounts receivable is mainly related to the decrease in property taxes and

municipal license taxes receivables of $3.9 million and $0.9 million, respectively, that resulted from
increased collections associated with tax amnesties that were carried out and completed during the current
fiscal year by the Municipality and the Municipal Revenue Collection Center. The decrease in receivables
is also related to the decrease of $4.1 million in construction excise taxes receivable that resulted from the

collection of $6.0 million pertaining to one particular construction project and the startup of the expansion
of a residential project üat provided collections amounting to $3.4 million.

The Municipality's total liabilities amounted to 51.18 billion at June 30, 2015, reflecting an increase of
$28.6 million when compared with the prior fiscal year. The increase is mainly due the net ofthe following:

o Bonds and notes payable increased $26.2 million due to the issuance of $89.4 million in new notes

during the current year, partially offset by the current year debt service principal payments ofbonds
and notes amounting to 563.2 million.

. Claims and judgments increased $10.0 million due the net effect of üe current year payments of
$1.2 million and the provision for losses of $l1.2 million, which include a new charge of $9.0
million related to a case in which the Municipality is currently defendant in a legal proceeding from
a contractor seeking a compensation for damages on an alleged breach of contract.

. Pension-related debt, the self-insurance claims liability and the estimated liability for municipal
solid waste landfill decreased $3.7 million, $0.8 million, and S0.8 million, respectively, due to the
current year payments made.

. Compensated absences decreased $1.1 million due the net effect of the current year payments of
$7.9 million offset by the current year accrual of $6.8 million.
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' Accounts and intergovemmental payables decreased $3.4 million due to the decrease in the
outstanding days in accounts payable that resulted from strict budgetary adherence and improved
cash flows in the current year that allowed the Municipality to accelerate payments to suppliers in
comparison with prior fiscal years.

The Municipality's deferred inflows of resources amounted to $100.6 million at June 30, 2015, reflecting
a decrease of $8.6 million when compared with prior year. The decrease is mainly due to the decrease of
$8.5 million in unearned municipal license taxes, principally those related to the volume ofbusiness ofone
ofPuefo Rico's largest banks which was closed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on February
15, 2015 and, consequently, reduced the Municipality's uneamed municipal license tax collections by
approximately $3.5 million at June 30, 2015. Uneamed municipal license taxes also decreased by the
current trend followed by many business taxpayers during the current fiscal year in which a significant
portion of them decided to split their municipal license tax i¡ two installments, of which the second one
will be collected in January 2016, therefore, decreasing uneamed municipal license taxes at June 30, 2015.

The largest portion of the Municipality's net position is the unrestricted of $403.1 million deficit. The net
position generally consists ofthe excess of assets and deferred outflows over related liabilities and deferred
inflows that are neither extemally legally restricted, nor invested in capital assets. This deficit is the
consequence of previous budgets which did not provide funding for incurred long-term obligations such as
compensated absences, landñll closure and post closure costs, claims and judgments and others.
Historically, such obligations have been budgeted on a pay as you go basis without providing funding for
their future liquidation. Consequently, the Municipality cannot draw from its existing assets to provide
services to its citizens and depends on its taxing ability to continue its operations.

Ar additional portion of the Municipality's net position represents the net investment of g297.3 million i¡
capital assets such as land, infrastructure, buildings, equipment, among others, less any outstanding related
debt used to acquire those assets. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to its
residents; consequently, these assets a¡e not available for future spending. The amounts restricted for debt
service represent another portion ofthe net position, and these are resources subject to external restrictions
for the purposes explained above.

This space was intentionally left blank
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Changes in Net Position

The condensed changes in net position information are presented below (in thousands):
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The Municipality's total revenues decreased by approximately $18.7 million representing a2.77o decrease

for the ñscal year ended June 30, 2015. Approximately,66.5Vo (68.4Vo in 2014) ofthe Municipality's total
revenue came from taxes, while approximately 23.4Vo (22.57o in 2014) resulted from intergovemmental
grants and contributions, including federal financial assistance. Charges for services provided

approximately 8.6Vo (7 .77o in 2014) of the total revenues.
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Revenues from taxes decreased by approximately $25.0 miltion (5.37o decrease) mainly for the following
reasons:

. Property taxes decreased by $34.5 million ( 13.67o decrease) mainly because during the prior fiscal
year the Municipal Revenue collection center (cRM, by its spanish acronym), carried out a
property tax amnesty that provided $12.5 million in non-recurring property tax revenues, while
during the current year the Municipality collected only $3.4 million in non-recurrent propefy tax
amnesty revenues.

In addition, during the current ftscal year, CRIM reduced the Municipality's property tax revenues
by $7.5 million in order to collect such amount in relation to property tax advances made to the
Municipality in excess of actual property tax collections made by CRIM from previous fiscal years.

Furthermore, a pofion of the decrease in property tax revenues amounting to S17.9 million is
related to the overall current economic conditions of the Commonwealth in which various
signiñcant business taxpayers have ceased or reduced operations, including one of Puerto Rico's
largest banks which was closed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on February 15,
2015.

The effect ofthe economic conditions of the Commonwealth caused an additional reduction of $ 1.9
million in the property tax remittances received from CRIM during the current fiscal year in
comparison with the prior fiscal year.

. Municipal license tax revenues increased by $3.7 million (3.07o increase) due to the net effecr of a
municipal license tax amnesty carried out by the Municipality during the current fiscal year that
provided approximately $7.2 million in additional non-recurring tax revenues, partially offset by a
reduction of $3.5 million in municipal license tax revenues related to the reduced volume of
business of several business taxpayers due to the current condition ofthe local economy, including
the bank referred to above that ceased operations during the current fiscal year.

. Construction excise tax revenues increased by $4.3 million (16.57o increase) mainly due to
collections received by the Municipality from the startup of the expansion of a large residential
project that provided collections amounting to $3.4 million in additional tax revenues.

Charges for services increased $4.7 million (9.97o increase) due to the increase of $4.2 million or 13.37o
increase in the collections from health insurance companies for medical services provided in the municipal
hospita.l and other medical facilities.

This space was intentionally lefi blank.
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The following charts summarize the Municipality's revenues by sources for the govemmental activities for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 a¡d 2Ol4:

Revenues by Source-GovernmentalActivities
for the fbcal year ended June 30, 2015
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Jte Ivtunrciplhty's total expenses amounted to $678.6 million and 9669.g million for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, rcspectively, for an increase ofg8.8 million (1.3% increase).

General govemmrcnt expenses increased by $15.9 million (13.9% increase) in comparison with the prior
fiscal year mainly due to a new charge of $9.0 miltion related to a legal case in which the Municipality is
currcntly defendant from a contractor seeking a compensation for darnages on an alleged breach of contract.
In addition, the increase in general gover rrcnt expenses is also related to the increase of $1.7 millio¡ in
the Municipali§'s net cost of the employees' Christmas bonuses.

Sales Tar 9.6%

t2
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Fducation expenses increased $3.4 milliol (6.29o increase) in comparison with the prior fiscal year mainly
because during the curent fiscal year the Municipality carried out several construction, remodeling and
maintenance projects in 18 schools that are property ofthe Commonwealth. In addition, during the current
fiscal year the Municipality canied out the frst ever summer camp for severely disabled young adults.

Urban development exPenses increased by $2.8 million (40.6% increase) in comparison with the prior frscal
year due to several new projects implemented by the Municipaüty to promote development in urban areas
such as the reconstruction of Ba¡celo Square, the Luis Muñoz Marín Park, the El Señorial City Sports
Complex, the Kids Zone Pa¡k, and many others.

Health and welfare expenses, urban affairs expenses and and public safety expenses decreased by $6.8
rrillion (3.4Vo decrease), S5.0 million (3.6Vo decrease), and $2.1 million (3.57o decrease), respectively, in
comparison with the prior fiscal year due to significant cost control and strict budgetary management
policies adopted in these activities.

Among those new and expanded initiatives in health and welfare, during the current fiscal year, the
Municipality added four (4) new medical specialties to its services. In addition, the Municipality acquired
new medical equipment, including a new CT scanning machi¡e, and remodeled the pediatric emergency
area and forty-five (45) patient rooms in several a¡eas of the Municipal Hospital. Furthermore, during the
current fiscal year the Municipal Hospital and the Municipality's nine (9) diagnostic and treatment centers
were accredited for the first time by the Joint Commission.

In the case of urban affairs, during the current fiscal year the Municipality invested an additional amount
of $23.3 million to carry out the most comprehensive cleaning, ornate, waste management and recycling
program. The Municipality used 18.8 million pounds of asphalt to repair many municipal roads,
approximately 271,000 lineal feet of pluvial infrastructure were subject to continued maintenance efforts,
1.5 million pounds of waste were recycled to minimize the environmental impact and several omate projects
were completed throughout the Municipality.

In the case ofpublic safety, effective January l, 2015, the Municipality granted the first salary increase to
the police force in fourteen ( 14) years. Overtime compensation ofthe police members were also paid in full
in January 2015. In addition, the Municipality invested approximatety $5.0 million in new police
equipment, including forty+hree (43) vehicles, thirty-five (35) bicycles, and three (3) trained dogs for the
detection of drugs and explosives. Furthermore, during the current fiscal year, four (4) new mobile police
stations were established in Miramar, Santa Rita, Hato Rey and Condado. Finally, an animal protection
special police unit was created during the current fiscal year.

This space was intentiotnlly lefi blank.
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The following chart summarizes the Municipali§'s program revenues compared to program expenses for
the govemmental activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Expemes and Eogram Revenrs{over¡mntal Aclivities
for the fiscal year ended Jurc 30, 2015 (In thorsanrls)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accountilg to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
relaied legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's
frnancing requirements. In addition, fund balance for govemmental funds provide classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Municipality is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $235.3 million, a net increase of $47.5 million in comparison with the prior year. The combined
fund balances include nonspendable fund balances amounting to $4.9 million at June 30, 2015. This is the
portion of fund balances that cannot be spent readily with cash or is legally or contractually required not to
be spent in the other govemmental funds or they are not expected to be converted in cash soon enough to
affect the current period. There are restricted fund balances amounting to S203.7 million. This is the portion
of fund balance that reflects resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions to pay for
specific program purposes (s18.2 million); to pay for capital projects ($ 141.7 million); and to pay for debt
services ($43.8 million).

General Fund

The general fund is the main operating fund of the Municipality. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the fund
balance of the general fund amounted to $37.0 million and $21.2 million, respectively. The rotal
expenditures of the general fund exceeded total revenues by only 56.2 million for the current fiscal year,
therefore, the increase of $15.9 million in the fund balance is mainly due to the net effect of the following
transfers among the general fund and other govemmental funds:

. A routine transfer of the total excess cash with fiscal agent amounting to $26.2 miltion from the debt
service fund to the general fund, as permitted by the Municipal Financing Act of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico.

A non-routine t¡ansfer of $1.0 million from the debt service fund to the general fund to cover the
interest debt service Payment on certain notes payable for which debt service is accounted for in the
general fund.

A routine transfer of $0.1 million from the debt service fund to the general fund representing the
interest income eamed by the deposits held in the debt service fund, as permitted by the Municipal
Financing Act of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

A routine transfer ofresources, amounting $7.2 million from the general fund to other govemmental
funds, to cover the operating costs of several federally and state funded programs.
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Debt Serüce Fund

The fund balance of the debt service fund as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $39.3 million and

$71.0 million, respectively. The decrease of $31.7 million in the fund balance of the Debt Service Fund in
comparison with the prior fiscal year is mainly due to various transfers made by the debt service fund to
the general fund in the aggregate amount of $27.3 million, as previously discussed.

The total revenues of the debt service fund decreased by $16.9 million in comparison with the prior fiscal
year. This decrease in total revenues is related to the decrease of $16.3 million the special ad valorem
property tax, which decreased because during the prior fiscal year CRM carried out a property tax amnesty
that provided significant amounts of the special ad valorem property taxes that were not applicable in the
current fiscal year.

Furthermore, a portion ofthe decrease in the special ad valorem property taxes is related to the deterioration
the curent economic conditions ofthe Commonwealth in which various significant business taxpayers have
ceased or reduced operations, including one of Puerto Rico's largest banks which was closed by the Federal
Deposit hsurance Corporation on February 15,2015.

Capital Projects Fund

The fund balance ofthe capital projects fund as ofJune 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to S141.8 million and

$79.1 million, respectively. The increase of $62.7 million in the fund balance of the capital projects fund
in comparison with the prior fiscal year is mainly due to the following borrowings recorded in the capital
projects fund in the aggregate amount of $89.4 million:

o On August 3 l, 2014, the Municipality bonowed $36.2 million from a commercial bank through the
issuance of Series A of the 2014 Municipal General Obligation Note. Such note was issued for the
purpose of construction of major capital assets. The note bears interest at a rate of 1.570 over prime
rate (4.80Vo at June 30, 2015). The note is payable in eight (8) annual installments ranging from
$760 thousand to $30.0 million, plus interests, through July l, 2022. The outstanding balance as of
June 30, 2015 amounts to $36.2 million.

¡ On August 7, 2014, the Municipality borrowed $53.2 million from GDB for the purpose of
construction of major capital assets. The notes bear interests at variable rates (7 .OlVo at June 30,
2015). The notes are payable in twenty-five annual installments ranging from $730 thousand to $4.6
million, plus interests, through July l, 2039. The outsianding balance as ofJune 30, 2015 amounts
to S53.2 million.

The increase in fund balance of the capital projects fund caused by the borrowing referred to above was
partially offset by the current year capital outlays amounting to S27.0 million. The cunent year capital
outlays are mainly related to constructions in progress of various capital projects, including the
reconstruction of the Luis Muñoz Marín Park, the El Señorial City Sports Complex, the Kids Zone Park,
and the improvement of general infrastructure assets such as several municipal streets and roads. The
current year additions also include capital outlays related to the acquisition of vehicles for the municipal
police department, equipment for several municipal departments and the improvement of various buildings
and sites, including those related to Paseo Las Curias, the Children's Center of Aquatic Therapy, and the
Pediatric Emergency Area at the Municipal Hospital.
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Other Governmental Funds

The fund balance ofother governmental funds as ofJune 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $17.2 million and
$16.6 million, respectively, for an increase of $0.7 million during the current fiscal year. The total
expenditures of other govemmental funds exceeded total revenues by $6.5 million for the current ñscal
year, therefore, the increase of $0.7 million in the fund balance is mainly due to the transfers of resources,
amounting $7.2 million from the general fund to cover the accumulated deficit of various spcial revenue
funds and to cover the operating costs of various municipal programs.

Proprietary Fund

The proprietary fund financial statements present the fi¡ancial position, results of operations and cash flows
of the Intemational Center fund, which accounts for the leasing operations and maintenance of a real estate
property.

At June 30, 2015, the total assets of the proprietary fund amounted to $52.9 million of which 951.0 million
represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, white g 1.9 million represents cash in commercial
banks. The total liabilities at year-end amounted to S54.5 million, consisting of revenue bonds payable of
$53.4 million and interest payable of $l.l million.

Revenues of üe leased facilities amounted to $3.2 million for the current fiscal year and have decreased
during the last two ftscal years as the former tenant declared bankruptcy, and has defaulted in rent payments.
The Municipality is currently under negotiations with new potential tenants to increase the rent revenue and
use of the facilities.

Although the total revenues of the proprietary fund decreased, the operating activities of the proprietary
fund Provided $1.9 million during the current fiscal year, however, in order to meet its revenue bond debt
service requirements amounting to $2.9 million, during the current fiscal year, the general fund made a
transfer of $ 1.0 million to the proprietary fund.

GENERAL FUND BI]DGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Municipality approved an original budget for the General Fund of $476.6 million. During the year,
there were various amendments to reclassify appropriations among different activities that were identiñed
during the course ofthe fiscal year based on current developments that affected the Municipaüty's finances.
In addition, there were transfers of appropriations between the original and ñnal budget due to changes in
depafments' budgeted expenditures. On the budgetary basis, actual revenues of the general fund amounted
to $491.3 million while actual expenditures were $462.7 million for the current fiscal year, resulti-ng in a
total positive variance of $28.5 million.

The total net positive variance in revenues of $14.7 million is mainly related to the net effect ofthe positive
variances in construction excise tax revenues and transfers from other govemmental funds of $10.3 million
and Sl 1.2 million, respectively, and a negative variance of $7.7 million in charges for services.

The positive va¡iance of $10.3 million in const¡uction excise tax revenues resulted mainly from the
collection of $6.0 million from one major construction project and the startup of the expansion of a major
residential project that provided collections amounring to $3.4 million.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

The positive variance of $l1.2 million i¡ transfers from other governmental funds is mainly related to a
transfer ofthe total excess cash with firscal agent amounting to $26.2 mitlion from the debt service fund to
the general fund, as permitted by the Municipal Financing Act of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and
a transfer of $ 1.0 million from the debt service fund to the general fund to cover the interest debt service
payment on certain notes payable for which debt service is accounted for in the general fund.

The negative variance of $7.7 million in charges for services is mainly related to a shortfall in the collections
from fines and forfeitures of $4.1 million due to a change in the process of how traffic fines collections
were transferred from the commonwealth to the Municipality during the current year and the
unpredictability nature of this revenue stream that does not follow any trends from year to year as this
revenue stream depends on the conduct and decision-making of citizens.

The total net positive variance in expenditures of $13.9 million is mainly related to the ner effect of the
positive variances ir general govemment and health and welfare expenditures of $12.0 million and $10.6
million, respectively, and a negative variance of $8.2 million in transfers to other govemmental funds.
These variances result from budgetary controls.

The negative variance of $8.2 million in transfers to other governmental funds is mainly related to a transfer
of resources, amounting $7.2 million from the general fund to other govemmental funds, to cover the
accumulated deficit of various special revenue funds and the operating costs ofseveral municipal programs.

The positive variances in general govemment and health and welfare expenditures of $12.0 million and
$10.6 million, respectively, are mainly due to significant cost control and strict budgetary management
policies adopted in these activities by the Municipality even though the Municipality carried out significant
new and expanded initiatives to improve its services to the people of San Juan in each of these categories.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as of June 30,2015 and 2014 amounted to approximately
$687.0 million and $700.9 million, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, site, improvements, equipment, intangibles, infrastructure, works of art,
vehicles and construction in progress. I¡frastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of
value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, srreets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar items.

This space was intentionally lefi blanlc
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonw ealth of Puerto Rico)
M anage menÍ' s Di s c us sion and Analy s i s ( U naudited )
Fiscal Year Endecl June 30, 2015

Govermental
activities (in thousands)

2015 2014

Larid and improlements $123,271 $ 123,27 |
Work o[ afl a¡d historica] treasures 2,224 2,224

Buildings and building impro\€ments 207,557 220965
Site imp.o\4ements 5l,363 5'7,OO'l

I¡f¡ast¡uctu¡e 198,'139 187,692

Equipment and \ehicles 23,347 20,61'7

Constrl¡ction in progress 29,533 37,252

Total $636,034 $ 649,028

Business-t,lre
activities (in thousands)

20ls 2014
Totals (in thousands)

2014

$ 18,600 $18,600

32.304 33,214

98

$ 51,002 $51,814

$ 141,871 $ 141,871
a ))¿. 11'ra

239,86t 254,179

5 I ,3 63 5',7 ,007

t98,739 t8'7,692

23,445 20,61',t

29 ,533 37 .252

$ 687,036 $ 700,842

The decrease of $13.8 million in capital assets is due to the net effect of the current year additions of $33.6
million and the current year depreciation expense of $47.4 million. The current year additions are mainly
related to constructions in progress of various capital projects amounting to $17.2 million, including the
reconstruction of the Luis Muñoz Marín Park, the El Señorial City Sports Complex, the Kids Zone Park,
and the improvement of general infrastructure assets such as several municipal streets and roads. The
current year additions also include capital outlays related to the acquisition of vehicles for the municipal
police depanment, equipment for several municipal departments and üe improvement of various buildings
and sites in the aggegate amount of $16.4 million, including those related to Paseo Las Curias, the
Children's Center of Aquatic Therapy, and the Pediatric Emergency Area at the Municipal Hospital.

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond issuances. The
proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety for such
purposes and cannot be used for any other purpose. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Municipaliry has

approximately $152.8 million and $93.9 million, respectively, ofunexpended proceeds from bond and note
issuances that are restricted or committed to future construction activities.

Additional details regarding the Municipality's capital assets can be found in Note 7 to the financial
statements.

Debt Administrafion

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal
bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality may
be pledged.

Based on the estimated total net assessed valuation of real and personal property in San Juan of
approximately $26.6 billion at June 30, 2015, the legal debt limit margin of the Municipality was $189.3
million at the end ofthe current fiscal yea.r, as calculated by the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto
Rico (GDB).

The applicable law also requires that i¡ order for a municipality to be able to issue additional general

obligation bonds and notes, such municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity." Law No.64 of
July 3, 1996, as amended, provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional
general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's Debt Service Fund and the annual amounts
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collected with respect to such municipality's Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by
GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and
the additional proposed general obligation debt (payment capacity). The rating assigned is BBB by Standard
& Poor's Investor Services.

The Municipality is required under applicable law to lery the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as
shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes. In addition, principal
of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in
anticipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on
the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be
available to make debt service payments on general obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that
the Special Additional rax levied by the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the
Municipality's Debt Service Fund, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. It has never been necessary
to apply basic taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality.

During fiscal year 2015, the Municipality issued bonds amounting to $89.4 million to provide for
construction projects of the Municipality. General obligation debt includes bonds, notes and mortgage as
shown in the table below, in thousands:

Gove rnmental
activiües

Business-t¡pe
activitie s Totals

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Bonds paybb

Notes payable

Revenue bonds

Mortgage payable

Total

s 399,783 S 436,591

506,193 442,056

2,14 2,622

s3372 53982

$ 399,783

506,193

53372

$ 436,s91

442§s6

53982
2,144 2,622

$ 908,120 $ 881269 $ s3J72 $ s3982 $ %t*92 $ 935,251

At June 30, 2015, the Municipality had $399.8 million of general obligation bonds outstanding.

As can be seen in the following chart, approximately 81.3Vo of the Municipality's outstanding general
obligation bonds will be retired within üe next fifteen (15) years.

GOB Principal Amortization
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(Commonw ealth of Puerto Rico)
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 5

The Municipality has various outstanding notes payable amounting to $506.2 miltion at June 30,
2015. Those notes payable were mainly issued for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital
assets and for working capital purposes. These outstanding notes payable will be paid with unrestricted
property tax revenues and financial resources arising from sales and usage taxes recorded in the debt service
fund.

During the current fiscal year, total bonds and notes payable increased $26.2 million due to the issuance of
$89.4 million in new notes during the current year, pafially offset by the current year debt service principal
payments of bonds and notes amounting to S63.2 million.

Additional details regarding the Municipality's long-term debt can be found in Note I I to the financial
statements.

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS

Failure to Implement Requirements of New Accounting Standaril for pensions

As disclosed in Note 12 to the basic financial statements, the Municipality was not able to implement the
requirements of Statement No. 68 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, Acciunting and
Financial Reporting for Pension, (GASB 68). The Municipality's inability to implement the requirements
of GASB 68 resulted from the unavailability of the required information that was expected to bé provided
by The Employee Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its Insrrumentaliti; (ERS),
a pension trust fund of the Commonwealü, which is not under the Municipality's management and control.
Therefore, as of the date of this report, it is not k¡own when the required information shall be provided to
enable the Municipality to implement the requirements GASB 68 and, therefore, the Municipality is nor
able to determine the possible impact on its basic financial statements. This situation resulted in the
expression of a qualified opinion from our extemal auditors, on the govemmental activities of the
Municipality.

RECENT LEGISLATION RELATED TO MUNICIPAL SALES AND USAGE TAXES

on Janrary 24,2014, Act No.18, kn own as Municipal Administration Fund Aa (Act No. lg), and Act No.
l9,krnown as Municipal Finance Corporation Act (Act No. 19) were enacted to, among other things, amend
sections 4020.01, 4020.02 and 6080.14 of Act No. I of January 31, 201 l, known as /nrern al Revinue code
for a New Puerto Rico-

Effective lúy l, 2014, Act No. 18 reduced the statutory municipal sales and usage rÍu( rate of all
municipalities from one point five percent (1.57o) to one point zero percent (1.07o). Simultaneously, Act
No.19 created the Municipal Finance Corporation (MFC), an affiliated public company of GDB, which is
authorized to issue bonds and use other financing mechanisms to directly or indirectly pay or refrnance all
or part of the municipal long-term debt incurred by the Municipality in previous fiscal years, that are
payable from or backed by the municipal sales and usage taxes.

In order to mitigate the effects ofthe reductions in the municipal sales and usage tax rate referred to above,
Act No. 18 established the mechanisms to protect the financial stability of the Municipality by allowing the
it to continue receiving the economic benefits lost as a consequence of the reduótion in the statutory
municipal sales and usage tax rate referred to above. For these purposes, effective July l, 2014, Act No. 18
requires that an amount equal to z€ro point five percent (0.57o) of üe state sales and usage taxes collected
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by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico be deposited in a special fund to be known as Municipal
Administration Fand (MAF) in the name and for the benefit of the Municipality.

Accordingly, since July l, 2014, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has made advances from the collections
arising from the zero point five percent (0.57o) of the state sales and usage taxes to the MAF of the
Municipality. The advances have been made and distributed to the Municipality on a monthly basis as

follows in accordance with Section 4050 ofAct No. l, as amended:

r'. Forty percenf (4O7o) of the amounts transferred has been available to cover general operating
expenses of the General Fund of each municipality;

ii. Forty percent (407o) of the of the amounts transferred has been available and restricted in the
MFC's redemption fund to guarantee the repayment of any municipal loan, bond, note, or other
evidence of debt whose repayment source is the monies deposited therein under the custody of
GDB.

iii Twenty percent (2OVa) of the amounts transferred has been available and restricted in the capital
projects fund to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of major capital assets.

Signifi c ant I* gal Contin gencies

The Municipality is a defendant in a legal proceeding from a contractor seeking a compensation for damages
on an alleged breach of contract. The Municipality, under the advice of its legal counselors, has concluded
that the probable loss on this case would be approximately S9 million.

With respect to the aforementioned legal proceeding and all other pending and threatened litigation, the
Municipality has reported liabilities of approximately $14.3 million at year-end, for possible anticipated
unfavorablejudgments. These amounts were included in the flinancial statements and represent the amounts
estimated as probable liabilities, which may require future available financial resources for its payment.
Management believes that any unfavorable outcome in relation to pending or threatened litigation, in excess
of reported amounts would not be significant, if any.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers,
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the
Municipality's accounting. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial information,
contact the Municipality's Finance Director on the 5th floor ofthe Municipal Tower, 160 Cha¡dón Avenue,
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00919 or visit our website at www.saniuanciudadpatria.com-

*****
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Statement of Net Position
June i0, 2015

Golernmental
actiüties

Business-
type

actiüties Total
AS S EIS

Cash and cash equivalents i¡ commercial banks $

Cash with hscal agent

Accounts receivable:

Property taxes

M unicipal license taxes

Sales and usas taxes

Construction excise taxes

Int e¡governmental grants a¡d contdbutions

M iscellaneous receivables

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses

Other unrestricted assets

Restricted assets:

Cash in comme¡cial banks

Cash with fiscal agent

126,890,859

24,000,000

44,099,149

9,000,290

7,798,464

886,041

8,875,180

6,067,254

3,744,269

1,166,195

70,811,496

239,958,157

155,029,143

481,004,690

r,909,601

18,600,000

32,402,525

s 126,890,859

24,000,000

44,099,t49

9,000,290

7 ,798.464
886,041

8,875,180

6,067,254

3,7 M,269
1,166,195

72,721,097

239 ,958 ,15'1

173,629,143

513,407 ,2t5

Capital assets not being depreciated

Cap ital assets being depreciated. net

of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

LIABIIXTIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Intergovernment al p ay ables

Accrued inte¡ests on bonds and notes

Noncurrent liabilities :

Due within one fiscal year

Due in more than one hscal year

Toral liabilities

DM.MRD INFITOWS OF RES OI]RCES
Municipal license taxes

Intergovemmental grants and contribut ions

Total deferred inflows of ¡esou¡ces

NEf POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:

Debt service

Other purposes

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net posilion

See notes to basic financial statements.

1,179.331.187 52,912,126 I,232,243,313

97,907,874

4,112,129

19,315,078

67 ,852,351
938,676,737

1,134,153

660,000

52,711,944

97,907 ,874
4,112,129

20,449,231

68,512,351

991,388,677

1,127 ,864,169 54,506,093 1,182,370,262

88,690,478

I l,9l 1,000

88,690,478

11,911,000

100,601,478 100,601,478

299,649,066

37 ,832,683
t7 ,302,967

(403 ,919 ,17 6)

(2,369,415)

775,448

297,2',19,651

37 ,832,683
17,302,967

(4O3 ,143 ;t28)
$ (50,728,427)(49 ,t 34,460)
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
State me nt of Activ iti e s

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

Progfam r€ttnues Net expenses and changes in n€t position

Operat¡ng Capital

Ch0rges for grsnfs and grants and

se¡üces contribufions contributions
Gor€mmental Business-type

actiülies aciiüties TotalFuncti ons/Progmms

G ov ernmental actir ities

Geneaal govemment

Public safety

Urban affairs

Culture and recreation

Health a¡d weuare

Urban development

Economic development

Education

Interests on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Bus ines s - typ e activ ities

Intemational Ce¡lter

Total

4,541,817 3,220.58s

$ 6?8,57ó,090 $ 57,313,731 $ l2l,'796,591 $ 3,551,007

General rerenttes:

Prop erty taxes

M unicipal license taxes

Sales ¿nd usage taxes

Constn¡ction excise taxes

Intergovemmental Srants and contributions,

not rest¡cted to sPecific Programs
Interests on deposits

M iscellaneous revenues

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, at beginning of ñscal year

Net position, at end offiscal year

( 1,321,248) (1,321,248)

(494,593,507) (t,32t,248) (495,9t 4.155\

&penses

$ 130,662.801

58,695,185

134,O53,425

25,297,t16

193.815,634

9.677,'.735

22,911,216

5'7 ,369,211

$ 4,059,293
't37,787

110,504

1 ,2't 4,013

35,625,896

3,206,055

3,862,5\2

§ 9,481,422

1,238,7'.77

53,r85,536

465,3 t0
12,863,272

239,95',7

5,689,082

38,381,r 69

$ 1,621,1 1?

425,485

718,096

6l1,839
127,083

47,387

$ (11s,500,969) $

(s6.293,136)

(80,039.28e)

(23,557,193)

(l 45,326,466\

(5,619,884)

(11,883,969)

(15,0?8,203)

$ (l1s.s00,969)

(s6.293. r36)
(80.039,28e)

(23.557,193)

(14s ,326,466t
(s,6r e,884)

(11,883,969)

(l5,078.203)

41,545,8?0-252,O'.72-(41,293,798)-(41,293;798)
674,0342s3 s4or3J42 t2tifr..sr1 35s1,00? -reI§§ 

--------- 
(4%Jr3J0a

219,949,411

128,369,500

63,843,053

30,356,038

219.949,41I

128,369,500

63,843,053

30,356,038

30,120,078 - 30,120,078

4,840,942 - 4,840.942

5,029,14'7 - 5.029;747

(r.0r7.641) I.0r7,641

481.491.128 1.017,641 482,508,769

- dr,lo-ilt6t - (30-3ó0-, (r3305.186)

(36,032,08r) (1.290,360) (37,322,44t)

See notes to basic financial statemenls.

$ (49,134,460) $ (1,5e3,96?) $ (50,728,421)



Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30,2015

Grnrral

frud

Debt

service

tud

Other

govemme al

funds

Capital

pmjects

tund Tot¡l

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivahnts i¡ commrcial bank

Cash rvith fscal ag€¡t

Accümh receivabb:

Protsrty taxes

Muntipal lbense taxes

Sabs and usage taxes

Constructbn excise laxes

InteBov0mnEntal gan8 and contnbr¡tioos

Due from otlEr goYemllEnta] funds

Charges for rcdtal services

0ther niscelhneous

Loam receivable, flet of allowance for loan bsses

other unrestúted asse§

Restúted assetsi

Cash in corurrrcialbank

Cash with fiscal agent

Totalassels

LIABILITIE§

Accoullls payable and accrued liabiiie§

IntergoverrurEntal payabbs

Due to other governÍE alfunds

Bonds payable

Notes payabb

I¡t€rests payable

Tdalliab irbs

DEFERRED INTLOWS OF R8§OURCES

Propny axes

Muniipalkeme taxes

Sabs and usage taxes

Co¡stnEtbn excise taxes

Clnrges fu nrdfoal sewires

Intergovemmnal grants a co riJutt[s

Toal&fened inflows of resouces

¡UND BAI,ANCE

Nonspndabb

Restrited

Uffestúted

Total ñ¡nd bala(e

Toial liabiíbs, defercd idlows

of resou¡ces and fund bürce

$ 126,8m,859 $ $ $

2.1,000,m0

28,192:144

9,m02m

1,198,&

886,041

tJ63223

13,612948

s;!23208

3t9,176

176,321

23,t92:145

9tfi2114

15,m6,401

10103

15,906,404

18,0m

- $ 126,8m,859

- 24,0m,0m

- 44,099,148

- 9,0m2m

- 7,1t)8.4f4

- 88ó,041

1!D3957 8,8?5,1m

9,434,380 23947,328

5.423208

314,167 644,046

3:t44269 3,744,2@

989,8ó8 1,166,195

13,7269$ 38919241 18,165295 i0811,496

5058,063 108598203 113338,92 t2,/6,2§99 239,958,1'

-§__4qqq!r _§_.14¡.1!!lq jjLll!2v_ -!__l¿2048t _§._lÉig,68l

$ 69,»2289 $ $ 5,164165 $

4,ll2,t2q

55545t2 $ mJl196
. 4,|2,129

- 10,141 5,880,816 l7,l56J7l 23M1,328

- 38J08,m0 38,?08,m0

- 11,300,000 - 1r3m,mo

15,188 19,315,ü/8

i4l04ll8 69318031 ll,o15j8t 22,726,43t 171,ty,461

- 44W,149

- 9t,ú2,7r4

1,804,408 1,804,4m

SmJm 802,3m

1J31,808 lJ3l,m8

1,511J03 t22Á7,16t 13178ffi
15906,404 t2,261,t61 153,879,t21

ú$n 4139,832

8,332ñ1 392$§7s t4t:130§52 t4,373,494

4,916,159

2MJn 528

?3529,493 (1,902,083) 26§21,4t0

n$u27 39290.875 l4lJ30ót t12]i243 Bsnfig|

$ 236,848J01 $ r24jl5Jr0 $ 152,n6fi3 $ 52t04EX $ 566J44.681

(confirued)
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Municipalify of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Paerto Rico)
Reconciliation oJ the Balance Sheet - Govemmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Total fund bahnces of govem[Ental funds

Capital assets used in govern¡nental activitbs are not consllered cu[ent availabb f¡nancial ¡esou¡ces,
lherefore, are not reported as assets in the governÍEntal funds fmar¡cial statenEnts.

The folowing rmavailable revenue strea[§ a¡e consilered ¡evenues for goverúEDt-wile inaricial
reponing in the statenEnt of aciivii¡s, while are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the
govemr¡Ental ftmds lmancial stateEEnts:

Property taxes

Municipal lbe¡se taxes

Sales and usage taxes

CoDstsr¡ctim excbe ta¡es
Charges for ncdbal servbes
Inle rgoverME nta I grants and contributiorls

Total

Except for tho6e reported ori the debt servbe fund, üe following long-term ¡iab itÉs are not due and
payabb (Íuture) in the current perbd, tlErefore, are not reported as liabilities in tfÉ govern¡rEntal
ñüds:

InstallÍEnt pa)rfEnts over accounts payabb bahnce not yet dtre

Accrued eriployees' Ch¡istmas bo¡uses

Bonds payable

Mortgage fayabb
Notes payable

Compensated absences

Chims andjudgrrns
Setr-insura¡Ee chim lhbility
Estimated liab ity for munbipal soüd waste h¡dfrl postcbsure care costs

Toial

To(al net position of govemrEntal activi¡bs

See [otes to basic fnaDcial stateEEnts.

$ 23521r,G7

636,033,833

44p99,149

2yt2236
1,80f,408

802380
t,731,808

1,867,@
$2n,@5

(7 p6§e)
(9,1992s0)

(361 ,075,0m)
(2,144226)

(4%,8»:156)
(59187383)
(t4269«)
o,6n24)

(14:127 5t4\
(n3in$5)

$ (49,134,460)

(concluded)
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonw ealth of Puerto Rico)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

General

tund

Debt

senice

tund Total

Capital Other
plojecfs goremmental

fünd fun&
REVE,{I,IES:

Properly Iaxes

Municipal license taxes

9les aÍd usage taxes

Cotrstruction excise taxes

Charges for services

l¡teresls oD deposits

Intergovernmeolal gra¡¡s and contributions:

Federal

Local

Miscellaneous revenEs

Tolal revenues

DOE{DNUR.ES:

Currenl:

Gneral goveromenl

Püblic safety

Urban affairs

Oilture atrdrecrealiotr

Health a¡d s,elfare

Urban &velopmenl

Economic &velopment

Edrcation

Capiial oudays

Deh service:

Pritrcipal

Iolerests

Total expenditúes

UCBSS OT BPE{DNIJRES O}B Rf,VE{TIES

olErR FTNANCTNG SOURC[S (USES):

Paocee& from issuance ofootes payab¡e

Tra¡sfers from other governmenlal fu¡(b

Transfets to other govemmeútal futr&

Tra¡sfers to proprietary fund

Total other fimoci¡g sources (uses), tret

NET INC RE{S f, (DEC REASD IN N]ND BALANCE

$ 150,718,060

133,668,521

55,616,712

33.970,04?

54,186,340

1,713,800

30,398,558

$ 73,171,240

9,040,783

103,162

- $ 223,889,300

- 133,668,521

64,65t,495

- 33.970,047

- 54,186,340

14,990 4,840,942

118,720,601 118,720,601

5.923,440 36,933,831

2,988,990

6l1,839

4,395,303 - 634,444 5,029,141

464,687,34t 82,315,185 3,600,829 r2s,293,475 675,89ó,830

I13,683,054

55,913,729

68,783,715

12,952,449

172;t85,931

8,461,096

10,970,994

15,934,7 49

1,469.001

3,538,022 50.008,000

4,439,429 36,7t0,988

4t0,932.17'.t 86,718,988

9,246,107 122,985,560

97E,76t 56,9t 1,975

53,828,862 122,630,964

465,310 13,475,165

13,602,608 186,411,787

239,957 8,701,848

5.997.452 16.990.691

19,4t4,t24 55,461,4t 5

2,939,168 33,456,312

56,199

19,485

18,387

57,406

't95

22,251

52,542

27,048,14t

4,603,143

395,453

58,149,165

41,545,870

(6,244,836) (4,403,E03) (23,691,619t (6,417,610) (40,82J,928.)

131,771,145 7 t6,720,7 58

- 69,360,000 - 89,360,000

7,181,87E 37,493,504

(27,270.584) (2,986,664) (52,378) (37,493,504)

27,298,448

30,309,626

(7,rE3,E?E)

II,I{D BALANCE ATBEGINNING OF FTSCAL YEAR 21,t75,056 70,965,262 79,054,935

II]ND BALANC E AT E\¡D O F FISC AL YEAR $ 39,290,8?5 § t4t,730,652

(1,017,641) (1,017,ó41)

22,t08,107 l2l,210,584') 86,373,336 ?,131,500 EE,342,359

15,863,271 (31,614,381) 62,615,111 653,830 47,5rE,431

16,55?,413 t81,752,666

$ 17.211,243 $ 215,2t1,097

(conlnued)
(

I'S¿¿ flotes to basic financial statemer¡ts.

27



Municipality of San luan
(Commonw ealth of Puerto Rico)
Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances Govemmental Fttnds Ío the Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net increase in fund balances as reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in

ñrnd balances - govemmental ñrnds. $ 47,518131

Amounts for govemrnental activitÉs reported in the governmental fir¡ds fi¡ancial stater¡ents differ
from the arnounts reponed in the statement of activities for the following reasons:

Govemmental funds repon capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the stateme¡t of actiüties the

cost of those assets is capitalized allocated over their estirnated usefi¡l lives tluough depreciation

expense. The following is the excess of capital outlays over depreciation expense:

Capital oudays expenditúes - capitalizable assets

Depreciation expense

Total

The proceeds from issua¡ce of notes payable proüde current ava able fmancial resources and,

accordingly, are recorded as other lmancing sou¡ces in the govemmental funds. However, such

proceeds increase the outstanding balance of notes payable in the statement of net posidon.

The repayn¡ent or deductions of the following long-term obligations are recorded as expenditures in the

governÍEntal funds, however, are recorded as reductions of their respective liabilities in the staternent

of net position:

Bonds and notes payable

Mortgage payable

Total

The followi¡g is the net change in deferred inI'lows of resou¡ces of revenue strears that are reported

as revenues for govemrnent-wide reporting in the stater¡ent of activitigs while are deferred in the

govermEntal funds as consilered unavalable under the nndified accrual basis of accounting:

Property taxes

Municipal license taxes

Sales aÍd usage taxes

Construction excise taxes

Miscellafleous receivables ' charges for nredbal services

lntergovemmental granls and contnbutions

Total

SoÍie exp€rises reponed in the stateÍre¡t of activities do not require the use of cu¡rent avalable
fmancial resources and, therefore, are not ¡eported as expenditures in the govemmental funds. Those

expenses arc related to the net chaoge in the following liabilitbs a¡d tong-ierm obligations:

Accor.¡¡ts payable and accrüed liab ities

ClaiÍs and judgments

Setr-Insurance claim liabtrity

Pensilú-related debt

Estiñated liabilities for municipal solid waste landfill
postcbsure care cost

Coripensated absences

Total

Net decrease in net position-govemme¡tal actiüths

See notes to basic financial stateÍrenls.

33As6,3r2
(46150,985)

(t2994,6'13)

(89"360,m0)

5't,ú1,a22
418,143

58,149,t65

(3,939,889)

é29e,aD
(8t4,442)

(3,614,009)

(93,198)

( 186756)

(13,94't,315\

tJ412n
(9,962,988)

796,191

3,690,106

736,3'16

1,131,101

Q,461,981)

_$___11iJ92,122
(concluded)
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonweakh of Puerto Rico)
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cur:rent assets :

Restricted cash in commercial banks

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITTES
Current liabilitie s:

Accrued interests payabb on revenue bonds

Noncurrent liabilities :

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabihties

Total liabilities

NET POSITION (DETICIT)
Net investrEnt in capital assets

Unrestricted

Def,lcit

See notes to basic firiancial stateÍEnts.

Inte mational
Center

$ 1,909,601

18,600,000

32/0252s
st,ñ252s

$ 52912,126

$ I,134,153

660,000

52J11,940

s3,371940

s45M,Ú3

(2,369¡ls)
'77s448
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

Operating revenues - rental income and related charges

Operating expenses:

Ccneral, maintenance and adminis trative

Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues (eryrnses):

Transfers from general fund

lnterests on revenue bonds

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net

Net change in net position

Net position, at begirming of fscal year

Net position, at end of fscal year

See notes to basic fmancial statements.

Inte rnational
Center

3220,589

t,352,628

92fr,yJ2

2,n3,530

947959

1917fll
(2,268,307)

(12s0,ffi)

(303,607)

(12m,360)

$ (1J93,967)
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth qf Puerto Rico)
Statement of Cash Flows - Propietary Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

International
Center

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTTIES:
Rent collected ftom tenants
Other collectior¡s liom tenants
Paynents to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FI-OWS FROM NON-CAPITALFINANCINGACTIVITIES:
Transfers from general fund

CASH FI-OWS FROM CAPITAL AND REI.ATED
FINANCINGACTIVIT]ES:

Capital outlays - capitalized assets
Debt service on capital-¡elated reveüue bonds:

Principal paid
Interes ts paid

Net cash used in capital and related fmanciflg activities

NEI INCREASE IN RESTRICTM CASH IN
COMMERCIALBANKS

RESTRICTED CASH IN C\]MMERCIAL BANKS AT
BF¡TNNING OF FISCAL YEAR

RESTRICTED CASH IN COMMERCIAL BANKS AT
END OF FISCAL YEAR

Reconciliation ofoperating loss to net cash provided by operating actitivities:
Net operating incorE
AdjustfiEnt to reconcile net operating incorE to net

cash provided by operating activitiesdepreciation eryense

Net cash provided by operating activiÉs

See notes to basic financial stateÍEnts.

$ 2,724:26s

496324
(r,352,628)

1,867, 1

L2n1,241

lJú,422)

(610,000)
(2,Z*t,nO)

Q,m,292)

68,910

1,840,69t

_§_______l¿0eÍ9!_

$ 947,059

9m,902

$ 1,867,961
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Nofes to Basic Financial Slatements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2015

1. GOVERNMENT AND FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

a. Government Background Information

The Municipality of San Juan (the Municipality), founded in 1521, is the largest municipality
and capital city of the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico (the Commonwealth). The Municipality
has full legislative, fiscal and all other govemmental powers and responsibilities expressly
assigned by Law No. 8l of August 30, 1991, as amended, known as Autonomous
Municipalities Law of Puerto Rico, as amended (Law No. 8L). The Municipality is govemed

by a Mayor and a l7 member Municipal Legislature whom are elected for a four-year term.

The Municipality provides services to its citizens related to public safety, urban affairs, culture
and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, education, economic development, and

other general services to its citizens.

b. Basis of Presentafion and Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying basic financial statements present the respective financial position of the

govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the ag$egate
remaining fund information of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2015, the respective changes in
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the

cash flows of the proprietary fund for the f,rscal year ended June 30, 2015 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as

prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

As further explained on Note 12, the Employees Retirement System of the Commonwealth of
Pueno Rico did not provide the Municipality the information needed to adopt GASB Statement
No. 68, Acro¿rn¡in g and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement
Na. 27 ("GASB 68"). Accordingly, these financial statements do not contain any adjustments,

disclosures or required supplementary information established by GASB 68.

Accordingly, the accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies

and municipal operational units that are under the legal and administrative control of the
Mayor, and whose financial resources are under the legal custody and control of the

Municipality's Finance Director.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of: (l) the management's discussion and

analysis (MD&A), a narrative that introduces the basic ñnancial statements and provides an

analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities, (2) the govemment-wide financial
statements, (3) the governmental and proprietary funds financial statements, (4) the notes to basic

financial statements, and (5) the required supplemental budgetary comparison schedule of the
general fund and the related notes to the budgetary comparison schedule.

,
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Endecl June 30, 2015

a. Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements (GWFS) consist ofthe statement ofnet position and
the statement of activities, which report information on all activities of the Municipality.

The focus of GWFS is on the operational accountabiliry of the Municipality as a single
economic unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use of
available or currently expendable financial resources (referred to as fiscal accountability).
Operational accountability is the Municipality's responsibility to report to the extent to which
it has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for
that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality's principal operating objective, which is to provide
services to its citizens.

The accompanying statement of net position provides short-term and long-term information
about the Municipality's financial position by presenting all of the Municipality's assets,
liabilities and defened inflows of resources, with the difference between these three items
reported as net position. This statement assists management in assessing the level of services
that can be provided by the Municipality in the future and its ability to meer irs obligations as

they become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to which the Municipality has
invested in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restrictions on resources.

Net position is classified in the accompanying statement of net position within the following
three categories:

l) Net Investment in Capital Assefs -This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances ofbonds,
mofgages, notes or other borrowing üat are attributed to the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds
or deferred inflows of resources at year end, the portion ofthe debt or deferred inflows
ofresources attributable to the unspent amount is not included in the calculation ofthis
component of net position. Rather, that portion of the debt or deferred inflows of
resources is included in the same net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as

the unspent amount.

2) Restricteil Net Position - Tltis component of net position consists of restricted assets
reduced by liabilities and deferred i¡flows of resources related to those assets.
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets ifthe asset results from a resource flow
that also results in the recognition of a liability or ifthe liabilis will be liquidated with
the restricted assets reported. Restricted assets result when constraints placed on those
assets use a¡e either, extemally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the
like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The
Municipality has reported the following types of restricted net position in the
accompanying statement of net position:

a. Debt semice - Represents net resources restricted by bond indentures, debt
covenants or certain laws and regulations to cover the debt service payments of
bonds and notes payable.
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended lune 30, 2015

b. Other Purposes - Represents net resources externally restricted by grantors,
creditors or certain laws and regulations to cover specific programpurposes related
to certain federal and state grants and contributions.

3) anrestricted Net Position (Deficit) - Generally, this category consists of the excess of
assets and defened outflows of resources over related liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources that are neither externally nor legally restricted, neither invested in capital
assets. However, this net position category has a negative balance of $403.9 million
because liabilities and defened inflows of resources exceeded the related assets.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
Municipality's policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of operations by
showing how the net position changed during the fiscal year. This statement presents the cost
of each function/program as well as the extent to which each of the Municipality's functions,
programs or other services either contributes to or draws from the Municipality's general
revenues.

A function-/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a major
service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/programs reported in the accompanying
basic financial statements are: general govemment, public safety, urban affairs, culture and
recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic development and education.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which program revenues offset direct
expenses of a given function/progtam or segments. Di¡ect expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function, segment or operational unit. This statement reports
revenues in two broad categories: program revenues and general revenues.

Program revenues are generated directly from a program itself or may come from parties
outside the Municipality's taxpayers or citizens. In the statement of activities, program revenues
reduce the costs (expenses) of the functior/program to arrive at: the net cost of the
function/program that must be financed from the Municipality's general revenues or the net
program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's general revenues. The accompanying
statement of activities reports the following categories of program revenues:

1) Charges for Services - Tltese revenues generally consist of exchange or exchange -
like transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise
directly affected by the services. These revenues i¡clude fees charged for specific
services, including medical services, charges for licenses and permits, and fi¡es and
[or[eitures. a]nong others.

2) Progratn-Specific Operating anil Capital Grants and Contributions - These revenues
consist of transactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange
transactions with other govemments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the
resources for use i¡ a particular program. Operating $ants and contributions consist of
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 5

resources that are required to be used to fi¡ance the costs of operating a specific
program or can be used either for operating or capital purposes of a specfic program.
Capital grants and contributions consist of revenues or resources that are restúcted for
capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate capital assets associated with a
speciñc program. Restricted operating and capital grants and contributions are program
revenues because they are specif,rcally attributable to a program and reduce the net
expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported net of estimated
uncollectible amounts.

General revenues are the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and gains that
do not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal license taxes, sales
and usage taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs, interest income and other miscellaneous income are reported as

general revenues. All general revenues are reported net of estimated uncollectible amounts.

The effects of all inte¡-fund govemmental activities have been eliminated from the
accompanying statements ofnet position and activities. Residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as intemal balances.

b. Governmenfal Fund Financial Stalements

The govemmental fund financial statements (GFFS) (the balance sheet and the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances) provide information about the financial
position and changes in fund balances ofthe Municipality's govemmental funds by presenting
sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. The accompanying GFFS segregate
governmental funds according to their intended purpose and are used in demonstrating
compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions.

The focus of the GFFS is on major govemmental funds, which are determined using a
predefined percentage of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, revenues or expenditures of either the fund category or the governmental and
proprietary funds combined. Accordingly, the Municipality presents its govemmental funds
between major and non-major categories. Major individual govemmental funds are reported
individually as separate columns, while data from all non-major govemmental funds are
aggegated into a si-ngle column.

The Municipal§ reported the following major govemmental funds:

7) General Fund - Is the Municipality's main operating fund and is used to account for
and report all financial resources of govemmental actiüties, except for those required
to be accounted for in another govemmental fund.

2) Debt Service Funil - The debt service fund is used to account for and report for the
accumulation of financial resources that a¡e restricted for, and the payment of, principal
and interest for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally
mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and (2) certain special long-term
obligations for which the Municipality is being accumulating financial resources in
advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing in future years.
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Stalements
Fiscal Year Endetl June 30,2015

d.

3) Caoital P¡oiects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account for the financial
resources arising mainly from bonds and notes issuance proceeds used in the
acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital assets. The most significant
transactions ofthis fund are related to the proceeds on the issuance ofbonds and capital
outlays.

Non-major govemmental funds are reported within a single column and include several special
revenue funds. These funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than
debt service or capital projects.

The Municipality reports fund balance amounts based on the extent to which the Municipality
is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources in the governmental funds.
The classilications are as follows:

7) Nonsoendable - Amounts that are not in a spendable form or contractually required to
be maintained intact.

2) Restricted - Amounts that are legally restricted by outside pafies, constitutional
provisions, enabling legislation.

3) Unrestricted - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general fund
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other
funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a defrcit balance resulting
from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted,
committed, or assigned.

In situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifrrcations, the Municipality uses restricted resources first, and then
unrestricted resources.

Proprietary Funil Financial Staieme nts

The proprietary fund ñnancial statements consist ofthe statement ofnet position, the statement
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows. These
statements present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Intemational Center fund, which accounts for the leasing operations and maintenance of a real
estate propefy originally acquired through the issuance of revenue bonds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Stalement Presentation

1) Government-wide Financial Statements - The government wide financial statements
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues from
property tax, municipal license tax and sales and usage tax are recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchangeJike transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place.
Certain exchange-like transactions which include license fees, charges for services,
rental of facilities, sales of real estate and capital assets, and other miscellaneous
revenues, which a¡e recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally
not measurable until actually received.

Derived tax revenue, such as (municipal license taxes, sales and usage taxes and
construction excise taxes) result from assessments the Municipality places on
exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying
exchange occurs.

Imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes), result from
assessments made by the Municipality on non-governmental entities, including
individuals, other than assessments on exchange transactions. Receivables are
generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen.

Property taxes, municipal license, sales and usage taxes, and construction excise taxes
are generally recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) in the
fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first fiscal year that the use of
the resources is permitted.

lntergovernmental grants and contributions receivables and revenues are generally
recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. For
the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend resources on the specific purpose
or project before the provider reimburses any amounts. Revenue is, therefore, generally
recognized as qualifying reimbursable expenditure is incurred.

Donations and certain grants and entitlements from legislative or contractual
agreements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by two or more parties.
Receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as
lntergovemmental grants. Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange
transactions are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the
amount of loss is reasonably estimable.

Any revenue collected in advance that are restricted for use in the following fiscal year
are recorded as defened inflows of resources.

All general capital assets and unmatured long-term liabilities are recorded only in the
govemment wide statement of net position. The measurement focus and the basis of
accounting used in the accompanying govemment-wide financial statements differ
significantly from the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the
preparation of the accompanying govemmental fund financial statements. Therefore,
the Municipality presents reconciliations, as detailed i¡ the accompanying table of
contents, to better identify the relationship between these statements.
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

2) Governmental Funil Financial Statements The govemmental fund financial
statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabiüties of
the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality generally considers most
revenues (municipal licenses taxes, construction excise taxes, sales and usage taxes,
intergovemmental grants and contributions and certain charges for services) to be
available if collected within ninety (90) days after year end.

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRM, by its Spanish acronym) is a
govemmental entity independent from the Municipality and other govemmental
entities in Puerto Rico that is responsible of administering the Puerto Rico Municipal
Property Tax Law on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto Rico. CRIM has the
responsibility of imposing and collecting property taxes on behalf ofthe Municipality.
Property tax collections made after year-end generally cannot be broken down by fiscal
year since this information is readily not available and, therefore, property tax revenues
are recorded upon collection.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property taxes,
municipal license taxes, sales and usage taxes, construction excise taxes and
intergovernmental grants and contributions. These principal revenue sources meet both
measurability and availability criteúa in the accompanying govemmental funds
financial statements, except for amounts recorded as defened inflows of resources.

I¡ a manner similar to the govemment-wide financial statements, but subject to, and
limited by, the availability criteria discussed above, all revenues, expenses, gains,

losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchangeJike transactions
are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place. Accordingly, fees for
licenses and permits, most charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are
recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until
actually received.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange
transactions are recorded in a simila¡ manner to the GWFS, using the previously
discussed criteria set forth by GASB 33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to,
and limited by, the availability criteria discussed above. Accordingly, propefy tax and

municipal license tax, sales and use tax and consruction excise tax receivables are also
generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has a¡isen while
their respective tax rcvenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are also
generally recorded in the fiscal year when resources a¡e required to be used or the first
fiscal year that the use of the resources is permitted. Receivables and revenues from
federal and state grants and contributions, donations and entitlements are also generally
recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met
(generally, as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred for expenditure-
driven grants).
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Muniripality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Stalemenls
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Interests on deposits are recorded when earned as these revenues are considered both
measurable and available at year end.

The Municipality generally accrues a govemmental fund liability and expenditure in
the period in which the Municipality incurs the liability, to the extent that these
liabilities are normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with
current available fi¡ancial resources. Following are certain exceptions to the modified
accrual basis of accounting:

a. Principal and interest on bonds and notes payable are recorded as expenditures as

of year-end when resources have been segregated for their payment when due.
Amounts due on July I have been recognized as liabilities at June 30 in the debt
service fund.

á. Compensated absences, pension-related debt, claims and judgments, estimated
liability for municipal solid waste landfill post-closure care cost and other long-
term liabilities are recorded only when they mature (when payment is due).

c. Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable (unmatured) or not normally
expected to be liquidated in full and in a timely manner with available and

expendable financial resources, are recorded in the accompanying statement of net
position. Such liabilities are recorded in the governmental funds (except debt and

related interest in the debt service fund) when they mature and consist of mortgage
and notes payable, compensated absences, pension-related debt, claims and
judgment, landfill obligation and other long-term liabilities.

3) Proorietan Fund Financinl Stafements - The proprietary fund financial statements

are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are

recorded when incurred, regardless of when cash is received or paid. The statement of
revenue, expenses and changes in net position distinguish operating revenues and

expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a

proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The major
operating revenue ofthe Municipality's proprietary fund is from rent charges collected
by the Intemational Center fund from its warehousing and leasing facilities.

e. Assets, liabilities and net position

1) Cash Eouivalents

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments in money market
accounts that are readily convertible to cash and have original maturities of three month or
less.
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2) Re c eiyable s and Pav able s

Receivables consist of all revenues eamed but not collected at year-end. These accounts
receivable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are
determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic
conditions and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Intergovemmental grants and
contributions receivables represent amounts owed to the Municipality for reimbursement
of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs.

Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans receivable amounting to $3.7 million are stated at their unpaid principal balances,
net of the allowance for loan losses and deferred loan fees. Loan fees are recognized as

income over the contractual term of the loan using the effective interest method. The
carrying amount of loans receivable is reduced by an allowance for loan losses which is
maintained at a level that the Municipality considers adequate to absorb credit losses
inherent in the loan portfolio.

The amount of the allowance is based on an evaluation of the collectability of the loan
poffolio, including the nature of the portfolio, credit concentrations, trends in historical
data, specific impaired loans, economic conditions and other risks inherent in the loan
porrfolio. The allowance is hcreased by a provision for loan losses, and reduced by charge-
offs, net of recoveries.

Interest income is recognized over the term of the loan and is calculated using the effective
interest method. Interest income generally is not recognized on specihc impaired loans
unless the likelüood of further loss is remote. Interest payments received on such loans are
applied as a reduction ofthe loan principal balance. Interest income on other impaired loans
is recognized only to the extent of interest payments received.

The Municipality considers a loan impaired when based on cunent information or factors
(such as payment history, value of collateral, and assessment of the customer's current
creditworthiness), it is probable that the principal and interest payments will not be
collected according to the loan agreement.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when, after considering economic and business
conditions and collection efforts, that the loans are impaired or collection of interest is
doubtful. Uncollectible interest previously accrued is charged off, or an allowance is
established by a charge to interest income. Interest income on nonaccrual loans is
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received.

3)
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4) Other U nrestricted Assets

Other unrestricted assets consist principally of prepaid insurance, medical supplies

inventories used in providing health care services to patients, and ofñce supplies held for
consumption that are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.

Supplies inventories and prepaid insurance are capitalized at the time of purchase for the

entire amount of the purchase/prepayment and are charged to expense/expenditure as

consumed in the govemmental fund financial statements and the statement of activities,
respectively.

Capital Asse*

Capital assets used in governmental activities include land, works of arts, construction in
progress, buildings, building improvements, site improvements, infrastructure, equipment,

vehicles and intangible assets. These assets are capitalized and reported in the

accompanying govemment-wide statement ofnet position and the statement of net position

- proprietary fund. Infrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and include roads,

bridges, streets, sidewalks, drainage systems and other similar assets.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an

individual cost of $5,000 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or improvement.

and with useful lives extending beyond one year. All assets with individual costs under

$5,000 or with useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged directly to expense in the

govemment-wide statement of activities. In the govemmental funds, all capital assets are

recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund.

In the govemment-wide statement of net position and the statement of net position-

proprietary fund, all capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if actual

cost was unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their

estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the govemment-wide

statement of net position and the statement of net position - proprietary fund as projects are

constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset

or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the govemment-wide and

proprietary fund financial statements. However, there is no depreciation or amonization

recorded for land, work of art and construction in progress. Depreciable capital assets are

generally depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful lives under the straight-line

method, except for machinery and equipment held under capital leases which depreciated

over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease term.

s)
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The estimated useful lives of major capital asset categories are:

Description

Building

Building and site improveme nts

General infrastructure

Intangible assets (computer software)

Licensed vehicles

Machinery and equipment

Ye ars

40
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For capital leases in govemmental fund financial statements, the Municipality presents the
net present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the capital lease
recorded simultaneously as expenditures and as other financing sources. Minimum lease
payments are recorded as expenditures.

The Municipality periodically evaluates its capital assets to consider events or changes in
circumstances that may give rise to asset impairment. Among the factors considered by
management as part of its evaluation are: physical damages to an asset where action would
be needed to restore lost service utility, changes in laws, regulations, or other
environmental factors that may negatively affect service utility, technological
developments that may negatively affecr service utility, changes in the manner or duration
of use of a capital asset that may negatively affect its service utility, and stoppage of
construction or development of an asset.

An impairment loss would be reported in the government-wide statement of net position
or the statement of net position - proprietary fund net of any realizable insurance recovery.
For impairment losses recoverable through disasler assistance prograrns sponsored by
higher levels of govemment (such as the Federal Emergency Management Agency -
FEMA), the loss would be reported separately from the grant awarded for recovery
purposes.

Any impairment adjustment to the carrying value of a capital asset would be treated as a
proportionate reduction of both the repofed value of the asset and its accumulated
depreciation, based on the noiion that the impairment represents the effective retirement of
a portion of the asset.

6) Deferreil Inflows of Resources

In govemmental funds financial statements, deferred inflows of resources arise when one

of the following situations occur:

¿. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for
revenue recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously
discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30 and collected within
ninety (90) days thereafter for all revenue streams (except for property taxes which are
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7)

considered measurable upon collection) to pay obligations due at June 30. In
subsequent periods, when both criteria are met, the liability for uneamed revenue is
removed and revenue is recognized.

á. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them. In subsequent
periods, the deferred inflow of resources (uneamed revenue) is removed and revenue
is recognized.

Deferred inflows of resources in government-wide and proprietary funds financial
statements arise only when the Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim
to them.

Lone-term Obligations

The long-term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net position include
bonds payable, notes payable, accrued compensated absences, pension-related debt, claims
andjudgments, estimated liability for municipal solid waste landfill post-closure care costs
and other long-term liabilities.

Principal and interest payments on bonds due on July 1 are recorded as govemmental fund
liabilities in the debt service fund when resources are available. In govemmental fund
financial statements, face amount of debt issued (goss debt reported) is reported as other
financing sources when issued.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences include paid time off made available to employees in connection
with vacation, sick leave and compensatory time. The liability for compensated absences

is reported in the statement ofnet position. A liability for compensated absences is repofed
in the fund financial statements only when payment is due.

The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net
position is limited to leave that is attributable to services already rendered and is not
contingent on a specific event. The liability includes salary-related costs, which are direcdy
and incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer's
share of Social Security taxes and Medicare taxes).

The vacation policy ofthe Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations
at a rate of 2.5 days per month (30 days per year) per employee up to a maximum of 60
days. Employees accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days per
year) up to a maximum of 90 days- All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by
employees in excess of 60 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees each year,
if not used.

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated
unpaid regular vacation leave at the current rate. In the case of regular sick leave, if the
employee terminates his or her employment before reaching 10 years of services, such

8)
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regular sick leave is not paid to the employee, if not consumed. After l0 years of services,
any regular sick leave balance is paid to the employee. Accumulated vacation time is fully
vested to the employee at any time.

9) Leases

The Municipality classifies its lease agreements either as operating or capital leases. The
Municipality classifies a lease agreement as a capital lease if at its inception the lease meets
one or more of the following four criteria:

a. By the end of the lease term, ownership of the leased property is transferred to the
Municipality.

á. The lease agreement contains a bargain purchase option

c. The lease term is substantially equal (75 percent or more) to the estimated useful life
of the leased property.

d. At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments, with
cefain adjustments, is 90 percent or more of the estimated fair value of the leased
property.

Although the Municipality is prevented legally from entering into obligations extending
beyond one fiscal year, most capital lease agreements entered by the Municipality contain
fiscal funding clauses or cancellation clauses that make the continuation of the agreements
subject to future appropriations. Leases that meet at least one of the aforementioned four
criteria and have a fiscal funding or a cancellation clause are generally recorded as capital
leases. Otherwise, these are recorded as operating leases.

In government wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the obligation under capital
leases is recorded at the lesser of the estimated fair value of the leased property or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, excluding any portion representing
executory costs and profit thereon to be paid by the lessor. A portion of each minimum
lease payment is allocated to interest expense and the balance is applied to reduce the lease
obligation using the effective interest method.

10) Claims anil ludements

In government wide and proprietary funds financial statements, the Municipality
recognizes an expense and a liability for claims and judgments only when it is probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The
liability for claims and judgments includes all claim adjustment expenses that are
incremental (directly related to individual claims). In governmental fund frnancial
statements, an expenditure and a liability is recognized only as liabilities come due for
payment.
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11) Estimafed Liability for Municipal Solid Waste ltndfill Post-closure Care Costs

The Municipality recognizes landfill post-closure costs as an expense and a liability
throughout the period that the Municipality benefited from the landfill operations while it
was still in use. The landfill closed in fiscal year 2003 and received final approval for
closure from regulatory agencies in 2005, therefore the liability for post-closing care costs

was completely recognized upon the landfill's closing date.

The estimated liability for solid waste landfill post-closure care costs includes an estimate
of all costs to be incurred after year-end under the accrual basis of accounting. The
estimates of post-closing care costs were made using current costs (costs that would be

incurred if the closing date of the landfill would have been at year-end). The liability is
adjusted annually to reflect the effects of inflation, advances in technology, changes in
regulations or similar changes.

ln governmental funds financial statements, an expenditure for landfill post-closure care

costs is recognized only at the point where related liabilities normally would be expected
to be liquidated with current expendable financial resources.

I 2 ) I nte r- fund Transactions

The Municipality has üe following types of inter-fund activities:

a. Inter- fund loans - Represent amounts provided with a requirement for repayment,
which are recorded as "due from" in üe lender govemmental fund and "due to" in the
borrower govemmental fund. For amounts not expected to be collected within a

reasonable period of time, inter-fund receivables/payables are reduced to the estimated
realizable value and the amount that is not expected to be repaid is reported as an

operating transfer from the govemmental fund that made the loan.

b, Inter- fund transfers - Represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in
retum and without a requirement for repayment. These are reported as other financing
sources in the governmental fund making transfers and as other financing sources in
the govemmental fund receiving transfers.

c. Inter-fund reimbursements - Represent repayments from the governmental fund
responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the govemmental fund that
initially paid for them. Inter-fund activity has not been eliminated.

13) Risk Financine

The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover property and casualty, theft, tort
claims and other losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Municipality.
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The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by
automobile accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accident's
Compensation Administration (AACA), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State

Insurance Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico. This insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work
or employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their
employment.

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and

drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance progtams

administered by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Department of Labor and Human

Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and

provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because of
work or employment-related accidents or because of illness suffered as a consequence of
their employment. Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and drivers'
insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance

companies for its employees. Different health insurance coverage and premium options are

negotiated each year by the Department of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality.

The current insurance policies have not been canceled or terminated at year-end. Premiums

are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company. In the past three years, the

Municipality has not settled claims that exceeded insurance coverage.

Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

amounted to approximately $11.3 million. The current insurance policies have not been

cancelled or terminated. Workers' compensation insurance covering all municipal
employees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to approximately $5.4 million.

14) Direct Charees

Pursuant to and determined by an internal cost allocation plan, certain costs initially are

charged to the general fund and then billed as direct charges to other funds. Revenues from
these charges are accounted for in the govemment-wide statement of activities as general

govemment and in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances

as charges for services in the general fund. The corresponding expenses appear as

function/program costs in the Statement of Activities.

15) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, the disclosure

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements, and the
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3.

reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

DEPOSITS

At June 30, 2015, the carrying amounts and the respective bank balances of the Municipality's
deposits are as follows:

CaÉtal

Fojecrs
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Cash and cash equilalenls in

commercial bank
Cash r¡ ilh ñscal alent

Ca\h in mmmercial brnks
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r3.726.960

5.05E.061
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r2.,t62.899
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70.81 1.496

219.958.r57r08.598.203

s I69.675.EE2 S r08.598.203 S 152.75E.211 S 30.628.19.' 5 461.6ó0.512

Cafitd
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Rest cted:

Cash in commercial banks

Cash with fiscal a€ent

§ Bó.562.830 §

2.r.000.000

1.r.o14.402

5.084.,!rl

s s 136.562.830

, 24.000.000

2t.2§».t32 't1.262.116

12,462,E99 219.96r.347r08-598.204

38.919.242

I11.8t5.801

s 179.691.675 S 108.598.204 § 152.735.013 S 33,762.031 § 474.786.953

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Municipality's
deposits may not be recovered. Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public funds
deposited by the Municipality in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amounts

deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits

Insurance Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by

the Secretary ofthe Treasury ofthe Govemment of Puerto Rico, but not in the Municipality's name.

Deposits maintained in GDB are exempt from the collateral requirement established by the

Commonwealth and thus represent a custodial credit risk.

The Municipality's deposits consist principally of unrestricted and restricted demand deposits in
the GDB, as fiscal agent, and various commercial banks. The deposits include cash equivalents of
$1.03 million in the general fund that are held in commercial banks at year-end.

Cash equivalents and other unrestricted deposits in the general fund amounting to $150.9 million
are available to meet general operating requirements ofthe Municipality, including the payment of
short-term obligations of the general fund, most of them which are budgeted.

Bsnl halancrs of deposits
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The Municipality maintains an internal cash management pool in which several funds participate
on a dollar equivalent and daily transaction basis. At June 30,2015, the pool cash account in
commercial banks had a balance of $34.0 million of which $15.4 million, $3.2 million and $15.3
million have been recorded in the general fund, capital projects fund and other governmental funds,
respectively. The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating
requirements and any unrestricted excess, ifany, is generally invested in certificates ofdeposit with
commercial banks. Any deficiency in the pooled cash account is assumed by the general fund and
covered through future budgetary appropriations.

Restricted cash in commercial banks of $13.7 million in the general fund consist principally of
unspent note proceeds of borrowings made in previous fiscal years through the issuance of notes
payable, including Series A, B and C of the 2013 Municipal General Obligation Notes, that are
restricted for the payment of certain operating expenses and other working capital purposes.

Restricted cash with fiscal agent of$5.1 million in the general fund consists ofcollections of former
hotel municipal taxes ($2.7 million) that a¡e available for the operation of various municipal
prograrns, intergovemmental grants and contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power
Authority (S2.0 million), that are restricted for the maintenance and repairs of the municipal
electrical infrastructure, and unspent note proceeds related to borrowings made in previous fiscal
years for the payment of ceñain operating expenses ($0.4 million).

Restricted cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund consist of unspent property tax and sales
and usage tax collections amounting to $101.8 million and $6.8 million, respectively, that are

available for the debt service payments of bonds and certain general obligations notes.

Restricted cash in commercial banks and with ñscal agent in the capital projects fund, amounting
to $38.9 and $l13.8 million, respectively, consist of unspent bonds and notes proceeds that are

restricted for the acquisition, construction or improvements of major capital assets financed with
public debt.

Restricted cash in commercial banks ofother govemmental funds amounting $18.2 million consist
of intergovernmental operating and capital grants contributions received from the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico and the federal government of the United States of America that are available for
the operations of several operating and capital grant programs.

Restricted cash with fiscal agent of other govemmental funds amounting $12.5 million consist of
intergovemmental capital and operating grants and contributions from the Commonwealth that a¡e

mainly restricted for general infrastructure projects.

The restricted cash in commercial banks of the proprietary fund amounting to Sl.9 million a¡e

restricted for the payment of the fund's revenue bonds.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

a. Property Taxes

The Municipality is authorized to impose and collect property taxes from any natural or legal
person that, at January I of each calendar year: (l) is engaged in trade or business and is the
owner ofpersonal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real property
with a value in excess of $15,000 (at 1957 market prices).

Personal property taxes is a derived tax using the book value ofpersonal property assets owned
by the taxpayer at January I (lien; lerry date) and reporting such taxable value through a

personal property tax retum filed on May 15 (due date and collection date) subsequent to the
assessment date.

The total personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2015 was 8.53 percent (of which
taxpayers pay 8.33 percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the Commonwealth, as a

subsidy).

Real property taxes are assessed every January I (lien; levy date) and are based on estimated
current values of the property, deflated to 1957 market prices. Real property taxes are due and

collectible on January I and July of every fiscal year. The total real property tax rate in force
at June 30, 2015 was 10.53 percent (of which 10.33 percent is paid by taxpayers and the
remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the Commonwealth, as a subsidy).

Residential real property occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt
from property taxes only on the f,rrst $ 15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). For
exempt amounts, the Commonwealth pays the basic tax (4.00 percent and 6.00 percent for
personal and real property, respectively), except for property assessed for less than $3,500 (at

1957 market prices), for which no payment is made.

Included within the total personal and real property tax rates, there is a ponion of the tax rate

in the amount of 3.50 percent that is restricted for the Municipality's debt service requirements
on bonds and certain notes. Such amounts are recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund.

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRM, by its Spanish acronym) is a govemmental

entity independent from the Municipality and other governmental entities in Puefo Rico that
is responsible of administering the Puerto Rico Municipal Property Tax Law on behalf of the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. CRIM has the responsibility of imposing and collecting property
taxes on behalf of the Municipality

CRIM is composed of a Board of Govemors and a management team leaded by an Executive
Director. The Board of Govemors is composed of nine (9) mayors representing the seventy-
eight (78) municipal govemments of Puerto Rico and the President of the Govemment
Development Bank for Puerto Rico and the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs as

representatives of the GDB.
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b. Municipal License Taxes

The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses that operate within the
Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax pursuant to the Industrial
Incentives Acts of the Commonwealth. This is a derived tax based on the business volume in
gross sales as shown in the tax retum that is due five working days after April 15 of each year.
Entities with sales volume of $3 million or more must include audited financial statements
together with the tax return. Current the tax rates are as follows:

. Financial business - 1.507o of gross revenues
o Other organizations - O.20Va for annual revenues up to S1,000,000, and 0.50% over such

volume.

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 15 and January 15 of each fiscal year. A
discount of 57o is allowed when full payment is made on or before five working days after
April 15. Municipal license tax receivable represents filed municipal license tax retums that
were uncollected as of year-end. Municipal license taxes collected prior to year-end but
pertaining to the next fiscal year are recorded as deferred inflows of resources.

c. Sales and Usage Taxes

The Municipality imposes a municipal sales and usage tax within the territorial limits of the
Municipality. This is a derived tax applied to the sale price of a taxable item or on the purchase
price of all usage, storage or consumption of a taxable item. It is collected on a monthly basis
through a tax retum that is due ten calendar days after the end ofeach month.

On January 24,2014, ActNo.18, ktown as Municipal Administration Fund Acr (Act No. 18),
and Act No. 19, known as Municipal Finance Corporation Ac, (Act No. 19) were enacted to,
among other things, amend Sections 4020.01, 4O20.O2 and 6080.14 of Act No. I of January
31, 201 1, known as Intemal Revenue Code for a New Puerto Rico.

Effective July l, 2014, Act No. l8 reduced the stanrtory municipal sales and usage tax rate of
all municipalities from one point five percent (1.57o) to one point zero percent (1.07o).
Simultaneously, Act No.19 created the Municipal Finance Corporalion (MFC), an affiliated
public company of GDB, which is authorized to issue bonds and use other financing
mechanisms to directly or indirectly pay or refinance all or part ofthe municipal long-term debt
incurred by the Municipality in previous fiscal years, that are payable from or backed by the
municipal sales and usage taxes.

In order to mitigate the effects of the reductions in the municipal sales and usage tax rate
referred to above, Act No. 18 established the mechanisms to protect the financial stability of
the Municipality by allowing it to continue receiving the economic benefits lost as a
consequence of the reduction in the statutory municipal sales and usage tax rate referred to
above. For these purposes, effective July l, 2014, Act No. l8 requires that an amount equal to
zero point five percent (0.57o) of the sales and usage taxes collected by the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico be deposited in a special fund to be known as Municipal Administrarton Fund
(MAF) in the name and for üe benefit of the Municipality.
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Accordingly, since July l, 2014, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has made advances from
the collections arising from the zero point five percent (0.57¿) of the sales and usage taxes to
the MAF of the Municipality. The advances have been made and distributed ro the Municipaliry
on a monthly basis as follows in accordance with Section 4050 of ActNo. l, as amended:

i. Fofy percent (40%) ofthe amounts transferred are available to cover general operating
expenses of the General Fund of each municipality;

ii. Forty pefcerÍ (40Ea) of the amounts transferred are available and restricted in the
MFC's redemption fund to guarantee the repayment ofany municipal loan, bond, note,
or other evidence of debt whose repayment source is the monies deposited therein
under the custody of GDB;

iii. Twenty percent (207o) ofthe amounts transferred are available and restricted to finance
the acquisition, construction and improvement of major capital assets.

d. Construction Excise Taxes

The Municipality imposes and collects municipal construction excise taxes to most natural and
legal persons and any governmental instrumentality that carry out activities related to
construction, expansion, major repairs, relocations, alterations and other types of permanent
improvements to residential, commercial and industrial buildings and structures within the
tenitorial area of the Municipality. The tax is also applicable to infrastructure projects, the
installation of machinery, equipment and fixtures, and other types of construction-related
activities.

The construction excise tax is a derived tax imposed at a five percent (570) over the cosf of the
project, net of cefain exemptions such as the costs associated with the acquisition of land,
project design and other engineering fees, licenses and permits, legal and accounting fees, and
most marketing and advertising costs. The tax is paid by the taxpayer ar the beginning of the
project.

All single-family residential construction projects not related to housing development projects,
condominiums, or any similar projects, are exempt from construction excise taxes for the first
$100,000 of the project construction costs. I¡ addition, alt single-family residential
improvement projects are exempt from construction excise taxes for the first $25,000 of the
project improvement costs. All projects carried out on buildings and structures classified as

historical treasures by the Puerto Rico Planning Board have an exemption of three point seventy
five percent (3.75qa) in fhe fax rate applicable to construction excise taxes.

This space was intentionally left blank.
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e. I ntergovernmental Receivables

The composition of intergovemmenial receivables in the general ñrnd at June 30, 2015 is:

Cap¡tal

G€ner¿l pmlcts
tund fiDd

Othcr

ffDds Total
S.ate and o,he¡ i^,ergovernmen at enfties:

Pue¡to R¡co T.easury Depat¡rcnt -

Emplolees' Cfuistrlras bonus cost reimbursenEnl
Covemmnt of the U-5. Virqín Islaads -

High Intensity Drug Trafñc Administratbn
Other entilies

Total stale and bcal intergovernnEnlal entities

Fe¡leral g¡ants an¿l conúíbü¡ío,ts :
U.S. Deportncnt of Hot¡§ing añd Urbon

D¿velopm - Crrrfr]¡úny Señices Bbck
Grañts Ct¡sler

U-S- D¿parlru¡t oÍHcahh ond HuNn Senrce!:

Sheler Pl-Ls Care

Hopwa - Proict Sponsor

U.S- Depo.twtt of Iab¿r - High I ensilive Drug
Traffrking

Oúer federal grantors on varicnrs prograns
'to¡al federal grants and conrribulicns

Total intergoveínlEnral receivabbs

s l5l1503

251_720

-_______________ _-____.t!.q9q
t,763221 18,0m

$ 1,511503

25tJZO
18,m0

t38t223

Head Start Progmm
U.S. Depa¡t,Éñ1 of Housing dnd Urbdh D.telopn,cñ,:

Connnmity Devebprni Bbck Grant Program

1,64ó,6ól 1,6{6,66t

1,169,839 I,169,839

7651s 76É51s
119,3',tt t19,31r
150.178 t50,t78

634,9t5 634915

2546,4ta 2546.41a
7 @1.951 7 ,63951

s t,163,223 $ 18,000 $ ',t093,95-t $ 8,875,180

Intergovemmental receivables in other govemmental funds represent principally uncollected
reimbursements of expenditures incurred under grants and contributions from the federal and

local governments.

Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable

Miscellaneous accounts receivable as of June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Debt

General service

tund tund

Other

gove rnrm ntal

funds

Charges for medbal services

Oürer miscellaneous

Total miscellaneous accomts receivabb

Total

$5,423208 $ $ $5123208
3t9,t76 10J03 314,t67 644W

$ 5J42384 $ 10103 $ 314,167 $ 6,067254
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v 5. LOANS RECEMBLE

v Loans receivable ofthe Independent Capital Fund, a nonmajor special revenue fund, consist ofthe
v outstanding balances of various credit facilities granted under a revolving loan program to private

small businesses in the aggegate amount of $3.7 million, net of an allowance for loan losses ofv 
$5.8 million. The majority óf these loans are collateralized or guaranteed by eiüer first, second and

v third mortgage notes on real estate and/or chattel mortgage over machinery and equipment.

6. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables, payables and transfers are summarized as follows:

Due from ofher gorcrnmental fund;
Other

General gorernmentalDue to other
soternmental ft¡nó tund tun& Total

$10,14r$-s10,141Debt service fund
Capital projects fund 5,880,816 - 5,880,816

Other govemnrcntal funds 7,721,991 9,434,380 17,156,37 |
Totals _§____!lÉ.!2¿48_ _§___2411i!0 _§____4s47_328-

Tra¡¡sfers from other go\Erpmental fun&
Other

General gowrnmental
tund fr¡n& Total

Tra¡sfers to other
golernmenfal funds

CEneral fund
Debt service fund
Capital projects tund

$-s7,183,878S7,183,878
27,270,584

2,986,6@

- 27,270,5U
- 2,986,64

Other govemrrental funds 52j78 - 52378

$ 30,309,626 $ 7,183,878 $ 37,493,5M

The principal purposes of interfund receivables and payables among govemmental funds are:

o Recognize the outstanding balance of $7.7 million of short-term loans granted by the
general fund to other governmental funds to temporarily finance the payroll and other
operating costs of several federal and state-funded grant award programs.

o Recognize the outstanding balance of S9.4 million of short-term loans among other
govemmental funds to temporarily flinance the operation of several programs.

. Recognize the outstanding balance of $5.9 million of short-term loans granted by the
general fund to the capital projects fund to finance the costs of the acquisition, construction
and improvement of several major capital assets.

. Recognize in the debt service fund the accrued interests on deposits amounting to §10,141
due to the general fund at fiscal year-end.
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The principal purposes of inter-fund transfers among govemmental funds are:

Transfer of the total excess cash with fiscal agent of the debt service fund to the general

fund as permitted by Act No. 19 of January 24,2014, and the Municipal Financing Act of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The excess restricted deposits transferred amounted to
$26.2 million. Also, additional transfer of $1.0 million from the debt service fund to the
general fund to cover the debt service payment on certain operating notes payable.

Non-routine transfer ofresources, amounting to S7.2 million, from the general fund to other
govemmental funds, to cover the accumulated deficit of various special revenue funds and

the operating costs of various municipal programs.

Routine transfer of interest income amounting to $3.0 million from the capital projects fund
to the general fund, as permitted by the Municipal Financing Act of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico. This interest income was earned by the deposits held in the capital projects
fund and was transferred to the general fund.

Routine transfer of $ 1.0 million from the general fund to the proprietary fund to cover debt
service requirements of revenue bonds.

Routine transfer of interest income amounting to $0.1 million from the debt service fund
to the general fund, as permitted by the Municipal Financing Act ofthe Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico. This interest income was eamed by the deposits held in the debt service fund
and was transfened to the general fund.

Recognize in the general fund a non-routine transfer of $52,378 from other govemmental
funds.

This space was intentionally lefi blank.
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS

The composition and activity of capital assets for the fiscal year were as follows:

B¡lence at
bednning of
fiscalyear

s t23,27 t.319
2,224,365

37.252.394

to :,48,078

44E,ó75,058

t85,734,28?

288,380,? l0
56,424;112

3,825,426

983,040,193

Red rssi fic¡ti ons

Belance at
endof

I[creases fiscsl year
G o e e ñ rne n tdl Acf ¡vi ai ¿s :

Capitol assets, nor bei,ry depreciated:

tánd
Works of a.rt

Construction ifl progress

Total capital assets not b€ing depreciared

Capiral as sets, being depretiated:

Buildi¡gs and building imp rovenEn(s

Site improvements

Infmstructure

EquipnÉnt and vehicles

lnlangible

Total capilál assers b€ing depreciared

ks s : occumulated depreciation for :
Buildings and building improvenEnts

Site imp rovements

I nfrast ruc(ure

EuipffEnl and vehicles

lnlangible

To¡al accumulated dep reciat ion

Tolal cápilal assets bei¡g dep recia¡ed, ne¡

Govemmental activities capital assets, nel

B a i n ess.lyp e A ct¡ vi ti Qs :
Capital assets, nol being depr€ciared - land

Capital assets, being depreciated -buildin8

and building irtrp roverler¡ts

Equip[E¡t a¡d vehicles

kss: accumulaled depreciarioo for building

atrd building improvenEnts

EquipñEnt and vehicl6

(227 ;7 t4.022)

i28;t27.461\
(100,685.348)

(35,E07,502)

(3,825,426)

(496;t 59;t 65)
486,280,428

(46,4s0,9E5)

(30,178,97r)

§ (12,994,673)

$-

$-

(24,903.233)

Q4,rO323'

2,498,51l
1,507,903

20.896,819

$

17,184,298

n )84298

2,685,380

2,565,726

2,288,-t56

8,732,152

s 123,271,319

2,224,365

29,533,459

155,029,!43

453,858.949

| 89,807,916

3r r,566.285

65,156,t64

3,825,426

| ,024,215 ,440

(246,303 ,397 )

(138,444,123)

0 12,82t .2Et)
(41,809,923)

(3,E25,426)

(543,210,?50)
----28 

r ,00¡,69-0

$ 636,033,E33

$ 18,600,000

36,400,000

t@,42

(4,095,595)

24,903,233 16,272,O14

(18,589,375)

(9,717,256)

(12, r41,933)
(6,OO2,421)

24,901,211

$ 649,02E,506

§ 18,600,000

36,400.000

1o9,022

(9r0,000)(3,1E5,595)

(10,902) 00,902)
Total capital assets being depreciared, ner 33,214,405 (81l,EEo) 12,402,525

Business-lype aclivities capitalassefs, nel $ 51,E14,405 $ $ (8I.880) S 51.002.525

The buildings and building improvements of the business-type activities are leased under an
operating lease agreement to various tenants.

The main tenant of the facilities declared bankruptcy during March 2014 ar.,d has defaulted in its
lease payments to the Municipality. This situation caused the Municipality to transfer $1 million
from the general fund to cover the debt service requirements of the proprietary fund. The
Municipality is actively negotiating with current and possible altemative tenants to solve this
situation.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows:

Go v e rnme ntal a c tiviti e s :
CEneml govemrrEnt
Pubüc safety
Urban affairs
Culture and rccreation
Health and welfare
Urban developrEnt
Economic developrrEnt
Education

Amount
$ 5,134,166

2,s134',7s

13,895,717

11,303,644

5,523,«)2

331,918

6.W2991
1,685,46

Amount

_$______2n5r2

Total depreciation eryense $ ,16450,985

B u s in e s s -ü p e ac tiviti e s :
Intemational Center

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at year-end are as follows:

Gove rnme ntal funü
Capital Other

General prcjects govemmental

Statement of
net position -

govemmental

Accounts payabb to supp[ers $ 62,080982 $ 5,164J65 $ 5J54,872 $ 72,800,619 $ 89,9%567

Compensated absences, due

fund fud funds Total actiYities

689,030 689,030 689,030and payabb

Payollrehted accrued liatih¡res 1222277 7 2222n 7 222277

Total § @,w)289 $ 5,164Jó5 $ 5554,872 $ 80111926 S 97 W,814

9. INTERGOIIERNMENTALPAYABLES

Intergovemmental payables at year-end are as follows:

Puerto Rico Government Employees Retirement System

Puerto Rho Aqueduct and Sewer Authmig

Pue¡to Rfuo Land Administ¡ation

Pue¡to Rico Elecrt Power Aulhority

PueÍo Riro Department of Trcasury

Other hral govemmental entities

Total

$ 2,188962

1,M8273

258,463

315,445

139,637

141,349

$ 4,112,t29
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10. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources are as follows at June 30, 2015:

G€neral
ñ¡nd

D€bt

fund

St¡teú.nt
ofrel

Olher Tol¡l position -

golcmmental gowmÍlent¡l gorÉmEer¡t¡l
funús fun& actiüties

aaaeailable ,evelu.s:

M unicip al liceose i¿r€s

Sales and usa8e 1 (€s

Construciion e¡cise tar(¿s

M iscellatreous receilables

I nt€rgovemmen(al grants and contributio¡¡s

Total uoavailable revenues

Unedmed rcvenues:

Mudcipal ücense laxEs

Intergovemm€fltal grants and contribut ions

Total une.rned revenues

s 28,192,745 S

2.9-t2.236

1.804.408

802,380

1,731,808

l,5l1,503

15.906,404 § - § 44,099,149 S

- 2,972,236
, r,804,408
, 802.380

- !,731,808

356,161 1,867,664

37,015.080 15,906,404 356,161 53,211,645

88.690.478

I I,9I I,000
88,ó90,478

I l.9 t 1.000

88.690,478

11.91I.000

88,690,478 I t.9l1,000 100.60r.478 100.60r.478

Total deferred inflows ofresources $ 125,705,558 S 15,906,404 § 12,267,t6t $ 151,879,123 S 100,601,478

11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Balanc€ át
bGginriog of

Gov.mmentaloctiv¡dat' lisca¡veer

Bonds payable $ 436,591,000

Mortgage payable 2,622,369

Notes payable 442.055,118

Compensated absences 60,918,484

Pension-relaled debl 3,690,106

Claims andjudgemenls 4,303,978

Estimated liabili¡y for muricipal

solid waste landfill
postclo$ne care costs

Self insurance claims üability

Total govemmeotal ac¡ivities

Iong-term liatilities

B,l¡,ress. ty o e octivities :
Revenue bonds payable a¡d

total hlsiness-lype activities

non-cü¡rent liatilities $ 53,981,940 $ $ (610,000)

lncr.asGs Decreases

Balatrcc ¡t
end of ñst¡l

yea¡
Due within

o¡re lisc¡l yea¡

15,463,890

t0,423,434

136,316
't96,191

$-

89,360,000

5,444,694

I t,l7l,468

§ (36,808,000)

(478,143)

(2s ,223 ,022\
(6,5't s,795)
(3,690,106)

(1,208,480)

(736,376)

(796,r91)

$ 399,783,000

2,144,226

506,t92,156

59,?87,381

14,266,966

14,127,514

9,627 ,243

$ 37,318,000

520,406

20,619,854

1,861,524

§ 97ó,069,039 $105,976,162 $ (7s,516,¡ l3) $ 1,00ó,529,088 $ 67,852,351
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The Municipality liquidates certain notes payable, compensated absences, claims and judgments,
solid waste landfill posrclosure costs and any other long-term liabilities other than bonds, with
resources from its general fund.

G ov e rnme ntal Activitie s

a. Debt Limitation

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the issuance of debts of the
Municipality. Nevertheless, the laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth also provide that:

.l) Direct obligations of the Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds and bond
anticipation notes) are backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the
Municipality; and

2) Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality ifthe amount ofthe principal
of, and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all bonds and
notes issued thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount
paid by the Municipality in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds or bond
anticipation notes guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed l0 percent of the total
assessed value of the property located within the Municipality plus the balance of the
ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable and bond anticipation
notes to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service.

In addition, before any new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be
sufficient to cover the projected debt service requirements.

b. Bonds Payable

The Municipality issues general obligation, special obligation and public improvement bonds
to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to finance
certain operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certai¡ circumstances.

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public debt
will constitute a hrst claim on the available revenue of the Municipality. Public debt i¡cludes
bonds and bond anticipation notes. The good faith, credit and taxing power of the Municipality
are inevocably pledged for the prompt payment ofthe principal and interest of bonds.

The Municipality levies an annual additional special ad valorem tax of three and a half percent
(3.507o) of the assessed value of personal and real propety. The proceeds of this additional
special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at GDB whereby sufficient funds are set
aside to redeem the bonds payable of the Municipality in minimum annual or semiannual
principal and interest payments. The collections of this special tax a¡e recorded in the
Municipality's debt service fund.

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based on the
fluctuation of GDB's weighted average rate for its commercial paper program. Under this
program, GDB issues commercial paper: (l) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets of the
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United States of America, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to corporations having tax
exemptions under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts and, which qualify for
benefits provided by the U.S. Intemal Revenue Code.

The Municipality's tax-exempt bonds are subject to the arbitrage rebate requirements. At year-
end, the Municipality had no federal arbitrage liability on bonds since interest income earned
from the investment of unspent bond proceeds were made in bank deposits that generate yields
lower than the rates applicable to the debt service payments.

Bonds payable is composed as follows:

Description
Outstanding

arnount

2Ol2 general obligation bonds for the construction, improvements and

acquisitions of various capital assets with an original amount of $100.7
million due in annual installmenis of $1,615,000 to $8,530,000, through
July 1,2035; with interest rangmg from 6.OVa to7.5Vc

2012 general obligation bonds for the fifth payment of the early
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $25.7 million
due in annual installments of $375,ü10 to $2,145,000, through July l,
2036; with interest ranging from 6.0E" ro 7 .5Eo

2011 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets with an original amormt of $24.9 million due in
annual installrnents of $2,875,ü)O to M,310,000, through July l, 2017;

with interest rangin g fron 6.OVa Lo 7 .OVa

2010 general obligation bonds for the third payment of the early
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $28.3 million
due in annual install¡nents of $415,00O to $2,365,000, through July l,
2O34; with interest ranging from 4.75Va fo1.5Va

2010 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets with an original amo¡mt of $11.2 million due in
arnual instalknents of $255,00O to $1,025,0O0, through July 1,2029; wiü
interest ranging from 4.75Vo to 7 .SVa

$ 9s,4ss,000

24,510,000

12,105,m0

25,850,0m

9,710,000
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Description
Outstanding

arnormt

2010 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvernents of
various capial assets with an original arnount of $10-l million due in
armual installnpnts of S725,0O0 to $1,321O,00O, through July l,2019; with
interest ranging from 5 .OEa to 7 .Oqc

2010 general obligatirn bonds for the acquisition, construction and
improvemenls of various capital assets with an original amount of $13.5
million due in annual installments of S340,00O to $1,260,000, through
JuV I, 2028; with interest ranging from 5.Oqo $ 7.5Vc

2009 general obligation bonds for the acquisition of various capital
assets with an original amount of $7.0 million due in annual installments

of $800,000 to Sl23O,mO, through July l, 2015; wirh interest ranging
fron 4.759a to'7 .57c

2009 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvernents of
various capital assets with an original amount of $16.9 million due in

annual installrr¡enrs of $430,0O0 to $1,585,000, through July 1,2027;wth
interest ranging from 4.75Vo to 7 -57o

2008 general obligation bonds for the construction and improveÍEnts of
various capital assets with an original amount of S4.7 million due in

amual insrallrEnts of $175,00O to $500,000, through July 1,2ü23; wrth
interest ranging from l-539o fo 7 .SVc

2008 general obligation bonds for the second payrnent of the early
retirement termination benefit with an original arnount of $20.0 million
due in armual i¡stallments of $305,000 to $ló35,m0, through July 1,

2032; wúh interest ranging from 1.51% ¡o 7.25%

20O8 general obligation bonds for the constructfon and improyenents of
various capital assets with an original amout of M.7 million due in
annual instalhrEnts of $70,000 to $390,000, th¡ough July 1,2O32: wiÚ,h

interest ranging from 1.53Va ro 7 .25Vo

5,870,000

11,520,000

1,230,000

13,805,000

3l2O,W

17,335,(m

4,100,000
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Description Outs tanding
allrount

2007 general obügation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets with an oriúal amount of $13.8 million due in
affiual installments of $320,ü10 to $1,260,000, ttuough July 1,2O26; wil,h
interest ranging from 6.6O% to'l .NVa

2007 general obligaúon bonds for the first payment of the early
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $22.6 million
due in an¡rual installrnents of $357,000 to $1,812,000, through July 1,

2031; with interest ranging from 6.6OVa toT.NEc

2005 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets with an original amount of $18.6 million due in
annual installrnents of $480,000 to $1,585,m0, through July l,2O25; with
interest ranging frorn 5.33Vc Ío 5.317c

2005 general obügation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets wiü an original amount of $18.9 million due in
annual instalf¡nents of $570,0ü) to $1,450,000, through July l,2024; wi¡h
interest ranging from 4.17V. to 5.28Vo

lQQzf ggneral obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of
variors capital assets with an original amount of $10.1 million due in
annual installments of $500,000 ro $870,m0, through July 1, 2019; wirh
interest ranging from 3.28Vc to 4.80%

2004 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets with an original amount of $22.2 million due in
annual installments of $815,000 to $1,130,000, though J]U.ly 1,2027; wrth
interest ranging from2.76qc fo 5.3lVa

2003 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of
various capital assets with an original amount of $12.8 million due in
annual installments of M15,00O to $620,000, through July 1,2028:, wtt|l,
interest ranging from 1.617a fo 5.3lEa

10,470,000

18,918,000

12,995,000

I1,745,000

4,030,000

13,470,m0

7,815,000
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Description
Outstanding

arnour¡t

2001 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various
capital assets with an original amount of $55.6 milhon due in amual
installrnents of $760,000 to S4,825,000, through July 1, 2026; with
interest ranging from 5.ffiVa ¡o 5.6OVa

2000 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various
capital assets wiü an original amount of $25.4 müon due in a¡rnual

installments of $970,000 to $2,680,000, through July l, 2015; with
interest ranging from 7 -Blqa to 4.8OVa

1999 general obügations bonds for the construction and improvements
of various capital assets with an original amount of $65.0 million due in
annual installments of $l J,|O,00O to $5,885,000, through July 1, 2018;
with interest rangü g from 4.87Ea to 6.46Ea

1999 general obügations bonds for the construction and improvements
of various capital assets with an original amount of $67.3 million due in
annual installments of $ 1980,00o to $6,260,000, through July 1,2016;
with interest ranging from 6.@9a to 6.34Vo

1998 serial bonds for the construcüon and improvements of various
capital assets with an original amount of $51.4 million due in annual
installments of $1,190,000 to $4,695,000, through July l, 2017; with
interest ranging from 4.8'7?o to6.719o

1998 general obügations bonds for the construction and improvemens
of various capital assets with an original amount of $18.3 million due in
armual install¡nents of $350,000 to $1,605,000, tluough July 1, 2019; with
interest ranging from 4.87Vo to 6.719a

Total

This space was intentionally lefi blank.

3923s,W

2ó80,000

2r320[(.n

12,105,000

13,120,000

6,970,000

$ 399J83,000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable a¡e as follows:

Fiscal ye ar
ending

June 30, Principal Inte re st
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

$ 37318,m0 $

35J01,000

3tA72,W
23,956,W

19284,000

21,8352t4
22,269,W

19,718,861

2629t9s2
t7,5t0362

2Ar2A5 93,968,000 70,088,06 I

2026-2030 83,380,000 38240,674

203l-2035 62p34,W 13,810J39

203G2037 12ó70,000 t60,875

Totals 399J83,000 $ 229925,8ü2

Mortgage Payable

The mortgage loan payable with an original amount of $7.0 million to the govemment of the
United States of America bears interest at 8.5Vo ar.d is secured by the Federal Housing
Administration and by a first mortgage on rental property. Principal and interest are payable
from the proceeds of the rent collected from the tenants. The Federal government provides
housing assistance payments to qualified tenants to subsidize most of the monthly rent. This
housing project is adnunistered by a private entity.

Aggregate annual maturities of the mortgage payable a¡e as follows:

Fiscal year

endng

June 30, Principl Interes t
2016

20t7
2018

2019

Totals

520,406 $

5«,45
6't6,470

4q,%:5

162,295

|6,296
6,231
14170

$ 2,144,»6 $ 358,W2

Notes Payable

On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puefo Rico, entered into a
financing agreement with GDB to extinguish in advance certain bonds payable issued by Public
Finance Corporation (PFC), a subsidiary of GDB, which were originally issued to pay certain
property tax receivables owned by the municipalities of Puerto Rico through 1996, which were
acquired by PFC with recourse. The original face amount ofthe note allocated by CRIM to the
Municipality was for a term not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest at 6.50 percent
during its first five years. Subsequently, from years 6 through 30, the loan shall bear variable
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interest at a rate of 125 points over the 5-year LIBOR rate, which will be adjusted every five
years. Principal and interest payments on this financing agreement are accounted for in the
general fund. The outstanding principal as of June 30, 2015 approximates $10.3 million.

During September 2002, the Municipality entered into a repayment agreement with the GDB
and CRIM to repay a debt of $27.4 million. The principal and interest payments are due on July
I of each year through July 1, 2032. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2015 approximates

$21.5 million. The repayment agreement is payable in monthly installments of$168,685 from
unrestricted property tax revenues and bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 6.l9Vo.

During November 2004, the Municipality issued a special obligation refunding note with a

commercial bank for approximately $40 million to refinance certain notes payable to GDB.
The note bears i¡terest at 90-day London I¡terbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.25?o (0.827o

at June 30,2015) and is payable semi-annually ranging from $.06 million to $2.9 million, and

matures at various dates through July 1,2029. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2015
approximates $29.0 million. This note will be repaid from unrestricted property tax revenues.

During June 2006, the Municipality issued a note payable to GDB for $31.4 million. The note
is payable in annual installments through July 2030 ranging from $0.5 million to $2.4 million
and will bear interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25 percent (l.52Vo at June 30, 2015). The
outstanding balance as ofJune 30, 2015 approximates $24.2 million. The proceeds ofthe note
were used principally to pay debt incuned in prior years. This note will be repaid from
unrestricted property tax revenues.

During January 2008, the Municipality issued a special obligation note (SON-B) for $37.1
million. The SON-B is payable in annual installments through lu,ly 2032 ranging from $600
thousand to $3.1 million and will bear interest at 9Gday LIBOR plus 1.25 percent with a

minimum of 57o and maximum of 1ZVo (l.52Vo at June 30, 2015). The proceeds of the SON-B
were used principally for the construction of various capital facilities and other capital assets.

The outstanding balance as of June 30,2015 approximates $32.4 million. The SON-B will be

repaid through sales tax revenues pledge and account for in the Municipality Redemption Fund.

In addition, the Municipality entered into a loan agreement with the US Department of Housing
and Urban Development under a Va¡iable Rate Note Guarantee pursuant to Section 108 of the

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. The note was issued to
finance the future acquisition and construction of major capital facilities, and allows
borrowings up to a maximum of $72.5 million. The borrowings have an outstanding balance

of approximately $42.3 million at June 30, 2015 and is payable in annual installments ranging

from $4.4 to S6.3 million, mature at various dates through July 2022 and bear interest at 0.27o

over 90-day LIBOR (0.487o at June 30, 2015). This loan agreement will be repaid from future
grant awards received from the Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) program.

On August 24,2012, the Municipality borrowed $18.7 million from GDB for the purpose of
acquisition of major capital assets. The notes shall bear interests at variable rates (6.009o af

June 30,2015). The notes are payable in seven (7) annual installments ranging from $2.1
million to $3.3 million, plus interests, tkough July 1, 2019. The outstanding balance as ofJune
30, 2015 approximates $14.3 million.
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On June 28, 2013, the Municipality borrowed Sl65 million from three commercial banks

through the issuance of Series A, B and C of the 2013 Municipal General Obligation Notes
amounting to $80 million, $60 million and S25 million, respectively, for the purpose of
providing working capital and the financial resources needed to repay certain operating

expenses amounting to $165 million.

The 2013, Series A, Municipal General Obligation Notes, shall bear interests ar rate of I .sEc

over prime rate (4.7 5% at June 30, 2015). The notes are payable in twenty-five (25) annual

installments ranging from $1.9 million to $5.1 million, plus interests, through July 1,2038.

The 2013, Series B and C, Municipal General Obligation Notes, shall bear interests at variable

rates (4.25Vc and 7.50, respectively, at June 30, 2015) and are payable in twenty-five annual

installments ranging from $1.9 million to $4.8 million and from $2.0 million to $5.1 million,
respectively, plus interests, fhrough July l, 2038.

The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2015 of Series A, B, and C of the 2013 Municipal
General Obligations Notes approximate $78.1 million, $58.6 million and $24.4 million,
respectively.

In August 2013, the Municipality borrowed $50.3 million from GDB through the issuance of
Series D of the 2013 Municipality General Obligation Notes for the purpose of providing

working capital and the financial resources needed to repay certain operating expenses and past

due liabilities with suppliers outstanding since 2012. The outstanding balance as of June 30,

2015 approximates $49.5 million. The 2013, Series D Municipal General Obligation Notes,

shall bear interests at variable rates (6.O0Vc at June 30, 2015) and are payable in twenty-five
annual installments ranging from $700 thousand to $4.2 million, plus interests, through July l,
2038.

On January 29, 2014, the Municipality bonowed $5.0 million from a commercial bank through

the issuance of Series E of the 2013 Municipal General Obligation Note. Such notes were

issued for the purpose of acquisition of major capital assets. The notes shall bear interest at

variable rates (4.507c at June 30, 2015). The notes are payable in seven (7) annual installments

ranging from $650,000 to $785,000, plus interests, through July l, 2020. The outstanding

balance as ofJune 30,2015 approximates $4.4 million.

On June 28,2014, the Municipality borrowed $29.9 million from GDB for the purpose of
refinance the line of credit agreement that were issued to finance the fourth installment of the

early retirement termination beneñt plan and other related debts. The notes shall bear interests

at variable rates (6.007c atJune 30, 2015). The notes are payable in ten ( l0) annual installments

ranging from $2.1 million to $4.1 million, plus interests, through July l, 2023. The outstanding

balance as ofJune 30,2015 approximates $27.8 million.

On August 7 , ZOl4, the Municipality borrowed $53.2 million from GDB for the purpose of
construction of major capital assets. The notes shall bear interests at variable rates (7.007c at

June 30, 2015). The notes are payable in twenty-five annual installments ranging from $730
thousand to $4.6 million, plus interests, through July l, 2039. The outstanding balance as of
June 30,2015 approximates §53.2 million.
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On August 31, 2014, the Municipality bonowed $36.2 million from a commercial bank through
the issuance of Series A ofthe 2014 Municipal General Obligation Note. Such note was issued
for the purpose of construction of major capital assets. The note shall bear i¡terest at a rate of
1.5Vc over prime rate (4.759c at June 30,2015). The note is payable in eight (8) annual
installments ranging from $760 thousand to $30.0 million, plus interests, through July l, 2022.
The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2015 approximates S36.2 million.

The notes with commercial banks are subject to various debt covenants that the management
of the Municipality understands that have been complied with in all maierial respects, except
for certain covenants for which the Municipality has obtained compliance waivers from the
respective financial i¡stitutions at June 30, 2015.

The maturities of notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal year

ending

June 30, Principal Inte res t
2016

2017

2018

2019

202r-2025

202G2030

2011-2035

$ 20,619,854 S

21,688,526

23,@4,688

24,4q,9|

112,272,674

tu,7ü,920
»,382,285

26JU,549
33438,526

31,954,859

30,377,666

28,7W,746

I t9,518,769

84,7 t3,584

49051,370

2020 25,875,278

203G2037 83,117,620 14,828,513

Totals S 506,192,756 $ 419,294,582

Compensated Absences

The govemment-wide statement of net position includes approximately $29.7 million, $25.9
million and $4.2 million of accmed vacation benefits, accrued sick leave benefits and payroll-
related benefits, respectively, representing the Municipality's corünitment to fund such costs

from future operations.

Dstimateil Liability for Municipal Solid Waste l-andfill Post-closure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place a fi¡al cover on the

Municipality's solid waste landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain

maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. In December 2003,

the Municipality's landfill facilities were closed and in 2005, the Municipality received

approval from regulatory agencies. Based on current costs, the preliminary annual estimate of
post closure costs has been assessed to be approximately $736 thousand for a period of
approximately 20 years. The balance of post closure costs of $14.3 million is reported in the
statement of net posiúon. Actual costs may be different due to inflation, changes in technology,
or changes in laws and regulations.
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g, Self-insurance

The Municipality establishes a liability for both reported and unreported insured events, which
includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claim adiustment expenses.
The following represents changes in those aggegate liabilities for the Fund during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015:

Unpail claims at beginning of fiscal year

Incu¡red claims and claim adjustrnents expenses

Total incurred clairns and chirns adjustrnent expenses

Pa).ments

Total unpaid claims at end of iscal year

§ roA23A34

lo+23A34
(796,191)

$ 9,627 241

Effective July 1, 2014, the Municipality discontinued the self-insurance program and acquired
private insurance to cover these risks.

B u s ine s s -tv o e activitie s

a. Revenue Bonds Payable - Proprietary Fund

On December 15, 2010, the Municipality issued revenue bonds amounting to S55.1 million for
the acquisition of an income-producing real estate property commonly known as Intemational
Center. The bonds are payable in twenty five (25) annual installments commencing on July l,
2012 through July l, 2036. The Municipality shall pay interests on the bonds at a rate per

annum equal to 3.5 percentage points over the London Interbank Offered Rate (4.257o at June

30,2015).

Pursuant to the provisions of the revenue bond indentures, the Municipality has pledged and

assigned its right, title and interest in all future revenues to be produced in the operation and

maintenance ofthe acquired property. ln the event that such revenues are not sufficient to make

all debt service payments of principal, interests and premium, if any, on the bonds, the
Municipality will appropriate the necessary portion of its general revenues to cover the debt
service payments due and payable. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Municipality
transfened $ 1.0 million from the general fund to cover debt service requirements. In addition,
the acquired property is subject to a mortgage constituted as security for the obligation
evidenced by the bonds issued.

The revenue bonds are subject to several positive and negative covenants that üe Municipality
must comply with at all times. The management of the Municipality understands that all debt
covenants have been complied with, in all material respects, at June 30, 2015.

This space was intentionally l¿ft blank.
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12.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Fis cal year

ending

June 30. Princiml Int€rest
20t6
20t7
2018

2019

242U2024

2425-2029

2BUNA
2$5-n36

Totals

$ 660,000 $
700,000

760,0m

820,0m

5, r00,000

7,320,W
l3,l10,000

2,254,282

2,225,382

2,194,357

2,tfi,782
t0,205,937

8,884,825

8,1,18,3,,10

24,m1,94 t,468,924

$ 53.371.9,10 $ 37,542,830

PENSION PLANS

Substantially all full-time employees of the Municipality participate in the Employees'
Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS). The
Employees Retirement System is a statutory trust created by Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, as

amended (Act 447) and a component unit of the Commonwealth.

On April4,2013, the GovemorofPuerto Rico, signed into law Act No.3 of2013, which represents

a comprehensive reform of the ERS Act No. 3 became effective on July l, 2013 and amended the
provisions of the different beneht structures under the ERS as further discussed below.

Members who had entered the Employees Retirement System before January l, 2000 participated

in a defined benefit program. Members who began to participate prior to April 1,l99O (Act 447

Participants) were entitled to the highest benefits structure, while those who began to paficipate
on or after April 1, 1990 (Act I Participants) were subject to a longer vesting period and a reduced

level of benefits, as provided by Act No. 1 of February 16, 1990 (Act I of 1990).

In 1999, Act zl47 was amended to close the defined benefit program for new pafticipants and,

prospectively, establish a new benefit structure similar to a cash balance plan (this new benefit

structure is referred to as System 2000). Members who entered the ERS on or after January l, 2000
(System 2000 Participants) participate solely in System 2000. Act 3-2013 amended the law to
eliminate the lump sum distribution altemative and substitute it for a life annuity payable to the

System 2000 Participant. System 2000 Participants do not benefit from any employer

contributions. Instead, employer contributions made on account of System 2000 Participants are

used to reduce the accumulated unfunded pension benefit obligation of the ERS. System 2000 is

not a separate plan as there are no separate accounts for System 2000 Participants. Contributions
received from System 2000 Participants are pooled and invested by the ERS together with the assets

corresponding to the defined benefit structure of Act M7 and Act I of 1990 and the defined

contribution structure ofsystem 2000, as amended by Acr3-2013, will be paid from the same pool
of ¿-ssets of the ERS .
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Retirement and related benefits provided by the ERS, and required contributions to the ERS by
employers and employees, are determined by law rather than by actuarial requirements. As ofJuly
l, 201l, after the adoption ofAct I l6 ofJuly 6, 201 I (Act 116), the statutory employer contribution
for the ERS increased from a minimum of 9.2757o to a minimum of 10.27 5Vc of covered payroll,
and will continue to increase annually until fiscal year 2O2l- The employer contribution rate for
fiscal year 2015 is 13.275V0.

Required employee contributions for the ERS vary according to how the individual employee's
retirement benefits are coordinated with social security benefits. Act 3-2013 increased the

employee contributio¡ from 8.275% to l07c of covered payroll.

The ERS provides basic benefits under the defined benefit program principally consisting of a
retirement annuity and death and disability benefits (collectively referred to herein as Basic System
Pension Benefits). The ERS also administers benefits granted under various special laws that have
provided additional benefits for the retirees and beneficia¡ies (collectively referred to herein as

System Administered Pension Benefits). The System Administered Pension Benefits include,
among others, additional minimum pension, death and disability benefits, ad-hoc cost-of-living
adjustments and summer and Christmas bonuses. Act 3-2013 and Act 160-2013 amended üe
various laws providing some ofthese System Administered Pension Benefits to reduce some ofthe
amounts payable to existing retirees while eliminating the benefits for all future retirees (those

retiring after June 30, 2013 and July 31, 2014).

The System Administered Pension Benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis by the
paticipating employers, including the Municipality. The System Administered Pension Benefits
corresponding to former employees of the Municipality are obligations of the Municipality. Most
of the funds used to cover the System Administered Pension Benefits for other covered employees
are required to be paid by the Commonwealth.

The ERS actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 differs from the actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2013, due to the adoption of Statement No. 67 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board,
"Financial Reporting for Pension Pians" (GASB 67). GASB 67 specihes certain signiftcant
changes for finalcial reporting purposes for the ERS.

The actuarial valuation of the Basic System Benefits and System Administered Benefits as of June

30,2014 (most recently available) reflects a fiduciary net position of $127 million, total pension

liability of $30.2 billion and a net pension liability of $30.1 billion.

Statement No. 68 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB 68) became effective
for the year ended June 30, 2015. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27,

Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Govemmental Employers, as well as the requirements
of Statement No. 50, P¿nsior¡ Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through
pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent a.rrangements that meet certain criteria as is the

case of the ERS.

As of the date of the release of this report, the ERS has not issued its 2014 basic financial
statements, nor has it provided the Municipality with the required information to implement the
requirements of Statement No. 68 of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting
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t3.

and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB 68).
Therefore, the accompanying governmental activities financial statements do not have any
adjustments that will be necessary for the Municipality to account for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability, deferred inflow ofresources and deferred outflow ofresources in the statement
of net assets as of July l, 2014 and June 30, 2015, as well as the effect in the recorded pension
expense in the statement ofactivities for the year ended June 30, 2015. Also, additional disclosures
required by GASB 68 as well as required supplementary informalion have been omitted from these

basic financial statements.

The pension costs recognized in the accompanying financial statements are equal to the statutorily
required contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions, which is not
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Municipality and the participating
employees contributed substantially all of the required contributions to ERS and System 2000. The
combined actual contributions made by the Municipality and its participating employees to ERS
and System 2000 amounted to 532.5 million, $27.2 million and 27.1 million for the fiscal years

ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2O13, respectively.

FI]ND BALANCES

As ofJune 30,2015, fund balances of govemmental funds are comprised of the following:

&n¿¡¡l

ñud

Debt

senice

trd

0ther

goremnrnlal

ñmds Tot¡l

Capitd

pmjects

tud

Norspendable:

Long-term knm receivabb

OtBr uuestrird assets

Red¡icied for:

Opntbs of fe&ral and state-ñrn&d pograns:

Crrnl govemmnl

Pubh Safety

Healh ad wefaa

Uóan affa¡s

Ecommr &wbpmnt

Debt serrre ' prminland interests

Captal Fojecls - acquisith comtnctiln and

ad inpronmnt of nulx capialassets

Umlricted

Tnal ñmd bahres

-$ $ $ 3,i41ró9$ 3:t41269

fifin 95J63 l,lil,890

8'x25oi.:ftül 
,ffi

. 8552ffi 855206

- ói95,93 6J95,993

- 392$,ffi5 4J44,2¡l 43¡35,156

141J30,652 l4lJ$,652

28J29,493 (L90qo$) IÁ§n!rc

$ v,m83ri $ 39290,ri5 $ r4lJ30l52 $ 112!],243 i tsszttw
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14. NET INYESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

The investment in capital assets component of net position, net of related debt, is comprised of the
following:

Business-

Gorrcrnmental type

actiütics actiüties

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Outstanding balance on capital related debt

Unexpended capital debt proceeds

Total net invest[Ent in capital assets

$ 636,033,833

(489, 143,000)

152;158,233

$ 299, \M6

$ 51,002,525 $

(53,371,940)

687,036,358

(542,514,940)

152,758,233

$ 29',1,279,6sr

15.

$ (2,369,415)

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Division of the Municipality is responsible of assuring that the
Municipality's property is properly insured. Annually, the Risk Management Division compiles
the information of all property owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this
information, the Risk Management Division acquires all property and casualty insurance policies

for the Municipality. Setded claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any ofthe past three
fiscal years.

The Municipality maintains a claims-made policy to provide professional and patient care liability
insurance with liability limits of $300,000 for each medical incident and $2 million for aggregate

incidents. The Municipality also obtained tail insurance coverage for incidents incurred but not

reported prior to October 14, 1990. The Municipality has a self-insurance claims liability of S9.6
million as of June 30, 2015 related to property and casualty claims associated with a self-insurance
program that commenced in fiscal year 2013. The Municipality discontinued the self-insurance
program effective JluJy 1 , 2014 .

COMMITMENTS

a. Operating Leases

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under various

operating lease agreements, which generally have terms of one year or less and a¡e

automatically renewed for the same terms. Rental expenditures recorded in the govemmental

funds for the fiscal year amounted to approximately $6.7 million. Management beüeves that

the summa¡y of the future minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable real property

and equipment lease with terms exceeding one year is not material to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

b. Construction

The Municipatity had commitments at year-end of approximately $39.9 million for the
construction, improvements, or renovation of several capital facilities and the capital assets.

16.

71



Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Stafements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

17.

c. Other Commitments

At year-end, the general fund had commitments of approximately $35.5 million for executory
purchases orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year.

CONTINGENCIES

a. I*gal Contingencies

The Municipality is a defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental
to the performance of routine govemmental operations (including medical malpractice claims
to the Municipality's Department of Health). Under Public Act No. 104 of June 25, 1955, as

amended, persons are authorized to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set forth in
said Act to a maximum amount of $75,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to
more than one person or where a single injured party is entitled to several causes of action.
Under cefain circumstances, as provided in Public Act No. 9 of November 26, 1975, as

amended, the Municipality may provide its officers and employees with legal representation as

well as assume the payment of any judgment that may be entered against them. There is no
limitation on the payment of such judgments.

In addition, the Municipality is currently a defendant in a legal proceeding from a contractor
seeking a compensation for damages on an alleged breach ofcontract. The Municipality, under
the advice of its legal counselors, have concluded that the probable loss on this case would be
approximately $9 million.

With respect to the aforementioned legal proceeding and all other pending and threatened
litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of approximately $14.3 million at year-end,
for possible anticipated unfavorable judgments. These amounts were included in the basic
financial statements and represent the amounts estimated as probable liabilities, which may
require future available financial resources for its payment. Management believes that any
unfavorable outcome in relation to pending or threatened litigation would not be significantly
in excess of recorded amounts. The changes in the reserve for claim andjudgments for the last
two fiscal years a¡e as follows:

2015 2014

$ 14,162,313

I,045,755

(10,904,090)

$ 4303,978

The Municipality, based on the advice of legal counsel, believes that the potential claims not
covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows condition of the Municipality.

Balance as of July 1 § 4,303,978

Add: Provision for claims and judgrnents 11,171,468

I-ess: Payments or deductions of claims and judgrnens (1208180)

Balance as of June 30 $ 1426f.9óó
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18.

b. Federal Funds Administrúor

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by
the Federal Govemment. Expenditures financed by these programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the appropriate grantor. The "Reports on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133" for ¡he
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, disclosed several material instances of noncompliance with
appücable laws and regulations and with i¡temal accounting and administrative controls. If
expenditures a¡e disallowed due to noncompliance with grant prograflts regulations, the
Municipality may be required to reimburse the grantor. Management believes that the
Municipality will be able to comply with the terms of corrective action plans that may be
requested by the federal grantors, and that retum of funds, if any, would be inmateral-

SI,JBSEQI]ENT EYENTS

The Municipality evaluated subsequent events through November 30, 2015, the date on which the
basic financial statements were available to be issued. There are no material subsequent events that
would require adjustments to or disclosures in the accompanying basic ñnancial statements as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2015.

*8***
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Budset€dArmunt§
(Budgetáry

bas¡s)

IItral Bueet-
Pcitir€

Or¡s¡ral IinaI (see Note r) Nesatn€)
RE!r'E.IIJES:

Mu¡icipal license taEs
Sales and usage taxes

Construction eEise tar€s

Charges forservices
Interests on deposils
IntergovemrrEntal g rá¡ts and contriburions
Miscelaneous rEveoues

Transfef§ frcm other govemnEnral tunds
Totalrevenues

I,)(PFNDIT[IRFS:

CÉneral govemrEnt
P¡rblic safety
Urban atraiñ
C).¡ltu¡e and recreation
Health and weráre
Urban developíEnt
Economic dev€IopÍEnt
Educatior

Pri¡cipal
I¡terest

Tmnsfers to other go v em nEntal funds
Tot¡1e4enditurcs

IXCESS Or REvElllES OvB UPETIDITURES

Erdamtion of Ditrer€¡tces :

16,030,265 16.030,265 n,225.0m ll,l94,?55
476,600.000 476,6m,000 49r,29,955 14,6s',7.9ss

r@.442.9t6
121.366,000

55,609,000

24,r46,000

58,166.(m
5,436.0m

T.A\159
4:t6ZUn

1t6.228.622

53,656.845

71,609,541

12,598.222

181,732.018

8,438,939

9,905.860

l3.543,lm

8,886,845

t60.M2.916
12r,366,000

55,6(D,000

24.146.(m
58.r 66,000

5,436,0m

30,641.-759

436zufr

163,237,3$
t259U,446
54,14.233
34.431,9t
50.442.586

3,958,045

29,905.v2
r,930,953

105.943,493

55,015,256

@,337,ffi
t3.o59,244

165,012,046

13,759.618

rr,2fD,M9
t+212.951

3,$&m3
4,439.428

2;794,333

4,618.446
(r.466J6,)
r0,285,991

{'7 .721.414)

a.4n,9ss)
(736,387)

(2,831.04'7)

(t2,o21.42',7',)

t7 t.283

é,n9,223)
175,850

( 10,557,995)

5.2@,696
526.893

657,686

(r,m5,98?)

tt7,964,920
54,843,973
't3.626.a91

l¿883.394
175570,04t

8,489.922

10,682,156

13,555,265

4,544,0tO

4.439.4?A

476,600,0m 476,600,000

$,$-

8,203.845 8,203,845

462;730,62\ ( 13,869.379)

§____28,5n?4_ _§_--__ 527334

$ 491,257,955

8,2t6.291

(12,519,249)

(3,082.U4)

(2't,225,AO)

o,1n300)
ts,tn,108

_§_____4e.ñ-j4t

$ 46L7n,At

36-07O,23'1

(15,4&,696)
u.a2a,642

(8,203,84'

97\2tA
_§__47O932,117

Actüal arúünts (budgetary b¡sis) available for approp.iation íiomthe budgetary corparison schedule
Differences -budgetary basis to cAAP:

Non-budgetary revenues rEcorded during the year
Property taxafmesty collec.ions repoled as revenues for GAAP purposes in 2014

but reported as revenues forbudgetary purposes iD 2015

C€lain tmns fers ftomothergovemrEntal tunds arÉ recorded ás interest inconÉ forbudSetary
purposes bur are rEcorded as other financial resources for GAAPpurposes.

Cetain tr¡¡sfers fiomothe¡govemrEntal funds arc revenues forbudgetary purposes

but are recorded as oth er tuancial resources for GAAP purposes.
Net changes in other assels and defenEd inflows ofresources:

Tai intergovemrntal and ñi¡celláneous receivables

DeferEd infl ows of resources
Total rEvenües as reported on the s ¡aterEnt o f rEvenü es , erpeDditures , and chaÍg€s in tund balá¡ces

Ase s/o utfl ou's of nso urc es :
AclualarEunts Oudgelary basis) "iotalcharges to appropriarions" ftomthe budgetary co¡rparison schedule

Ditrerenc€s -budgetary b¿sis to GAAP:
Priorye¡rencunürances recorded as cuÍE¡t yeare&enditures for GAAP bdis
CuíEnt yearencuÍümnces recorded as ependitures forbudgetary purposes

Non-budgetary ependiturEs rEcorded during curcnt year
Celain trdnsfers to othe. govemnEntal tunds are recoded as e,penditures forbudg€tary

purposes but a.e recorded as other financial uses forCáAP purpos€s.
Net chaoges oüerassets and üabüties:

Other un¡Estricted assets
Toial eryenditures as reported on the state¡rEnl ofrevenues, elpe¡dfures, and chang€s in tund balances

The eorp a¡y irg ¡otes to budgáary carp &ison süedule are a irt€sral p dt of this schedule.
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to the Budqetary Comparison Schedule - General Funtl
Fiscal Year Ended lune 30,2015

1. STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

1) Budsetan Control - The Municipality prepares its annual budget for all of its operations and

activities. Such legally adopted budget is based on expected expenditures by the program and

estimated resources by source. The annual budgets are developed using elements of
performance-based program budgeting and zero-based budgeting, and include estimates of
revenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at

the time the budgets are prepared.

The Mayor must submit, for the fiscal year commencing on the next July l, an annual budgetary
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the

Commonwealth (the Connnissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than May 10 and

May 15, respectively. The Commissioner preliminarily verifies that the Project complies with
all the applicable laws and regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the
Mayor on or before June 13.

The Municipal Legislature has l0 business days, but not later than June 13, to discuss and

approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the budgets

submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so fa¡ to cause a deficit without
imposing taxes or identifying other sources of revenue to cover such deficit. After the

Municipal Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project is

sent back to the Mayor for his approval or rejection within 6 days. The Mayor may decrease or
eliminate any line item but may not increase or insert any new line item in the budgets. The
Mayor may also veto the budgets in their entirety and retum it to the Municipal Legislature
with his objections. If the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to
8 days to adopt or reject the recommendations or objections of the Mayor. The approved Project
is sent again to the Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and approve it.

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines refened to above, the annual

budgets for the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are

automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the
Mayor approve new budgets. This permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for its
operations and other purposes until the new budgets are approved.

The annual budget may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as frscal year-end

encumbrances, and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal
Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which
are subject to the approval of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality's Department of Finance and the Office of Management and Budget have the
responsibility to ensure that budgetary spending control is maintained. For day-to-day
management control purposes, expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted
amounts at the expenditure-type level of each cost center (activity within a program within a

fund). The Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations withi¡ programs and among
funds. The Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts among programs within and among
funds.

'15



Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
Fiscal Year Entled June 30, 2015

The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally
exceed appropriations) is at the functions/program level (general govemment, public safety,
urban affairs, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic
development, education, and capital outlays) within the general fund.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any fiscal
year shall not exceed the total revenues, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal
year unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided.

2) Budgetary Accountins

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP. According to the budgetary basis of
accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash is received, except in the case of
municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next firscal year are
recorded as revenue in the following budget year. Borrowings may be used to finance
budgetary excess of expenditures over revenues.

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the
appropriation prior to actual expenditure. In the govemmental funds, encumbrance accounting
is a significant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures are generally recorded
when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available appropriations and
encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the fiscal year. Amounts
required to settle claims and judgments against the Municipality, and certain other liabilities,
are not recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for payment.
Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other
appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the
Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried
forward and made available for current spending.

The accompanying supplemental budgetary comparison schedule - general fund provides
information about the general fund's original budget, its amendments, and the actual results of
operations of the general fund under the budgetary basis of accounting for the ensuing fiscal
yeaf.

At June 30,2015, the Municipality has outstanding encumbrances in the general fund
amounting to $35.5 million.

*****
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Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Other Governmental Funds Desc riptions
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt services and capital
projects.

Department of Jufice Fund - These funds account for and report federal fi¡ancial resources restricted to
expenditures for various homeland security and criminal justice programs.

Department of Labor Funrl - These funds account for and report federal fina¡cial resources restricted to
expenditures related with the Worldorce Investment Act (WIA).

Health and Human Services Fund - These funds account for and report federal financial resources
restricted to expenditures for va¡ious health services programs, including but not limited to, Community
Services Block Grants, Ryan White Act and Head Start programs.

Housing and Urban Development Fund - These funds account for and report federal financial resources
restricted to expenditures for various housing and urban development, rehabilitation and assistance
progfams.

Independent Capital Fund - This fund account for and report federal financial resources restricted to
expenditures for a revolving loan progfam to small private business for the development of economic and
commercial activity within üe limits of San Juan.

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund - These funds account for and repof miscellaneous financial
resources restricted or committed to expenditures by the Municipality and subsidized in part by Local, State
and Federal resources as well as miscellaneous sources.

Retirement Community Fund - This fund accounts for and repols the financial position and operation
of Comunidad de Retiro. The Comunidad de Retiro Fund is included as part of other govemmental funds
and accounts for the frnancial position and operation of Comunidad de Retiro (the Project). The
Municipality formed the Project for the purpose of operating a 356-unit housing project for the elderly
anüor handicapped. The Project is operated under Section 231 of the National Housing Act, as amended,
and regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development as to rent charges and operating
methods. Legal title of the Project is held by the Municipality. Separate financial statements of this
individual fund can be obtained from the Project's administraúve office:

Condominio Centro de Altamira
Paseo 501 Street, Suite 210
Urbanización Altamira
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00920



Municipality of San Juan
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Combining Balance Sheet -
Ot he r Gov e mme ntal F unds
June 30, 2015

D.p¡ram€nt Dep¡rtment human ¡nd urban
ofjustice of l¡bor

Indcpendcnt speciel
derrlopm€nt capital rcvcnue Ret¡remont

Tbt¡l
nonmsjor

special rcvenuc
fundsfund fund fund fund fund fund coñmunity

38?,5r3 $

260,171

5,348

57 4,t 53

815.576 $

29t
t3,212

I,885.866

3,00r,438 $

I,311,692
92.620

596.t 9 t

I ,60t,300

1.493,080 $

1.669,998

49,300

218.411

6.919,143

-$
2,556,81 1

121 ,142
3,7 44,269

t75.200

3,594.)20

l,396,350 $

3,634,81?

20, | 89

2,195,811

)2,462,899

5,696

I,394,902

$ 7,093,957
9,434,380

314,16'l
3,144,269

989,868

18,165,295

12,462,899

ASSf,IS
Accoünts receivsble. nct of allow¿nce

for doutiful accomts:

Intergovernm€ntal grants and conlr¡butions
Due from other governmental funds
Miscellaneous rcccivables

Lo¡ns receivable. net allowance for loan losss
Othcr !n resl rict ed &ssat s

Rcstricted asslts:

Cash in commercial b¡ñks
Cash üth fiscal agent

Tol¡l assets

LIABLNTDS
Accou¡rls payable and accrucd liabilities
Due to other governmcntol funds

Matured bonds and interesl poyable

Tol¡lliabiliries

DTIMRED IN¡I¡WS OF RESOURCES
InterSovcrnmenta¡ grant§ and contribulions

Tolal deferred infloua of resources

ÍUND BALANCE
Nonsp€ndable

Restr¡cted

UnreslÍicted
Total fi¡nd balances

Total liatiililies, d.ferred infloy,B of
resources and fund bolances

133,628 22,'.726,431

44,781 - 109,298 5,62s 12,102,76t 4,696 12,261,161
44,78t - tO9,298 s,625 - t2,t02,76t 4,696 12,261,t6t

12,51I $

479,426
316,376 S

2,045,668

352,961

I,353.692 $

4,1 13,691

596,191

430,369

r,271,120 $

6,212,5'.79

218,47 6
4,544,281
I,902,083)

35,641 $ 2,441,092 $

4,305,007
I 18.440 $

15.1 88

5.554.8?2
t7,156,371

I5,188

691,061
3,919,469
6.243,032 855,206

5.696 4,739,832
1,256.5?8 14,373,494

- (1,902,083
69 t.06'l

§ t,221,785 $ 2,715,00s § 6,603,241 $

78

10,349,998 $ 10,198,142 $ 19,710,066 $ 1,400,598 $ 52,204,835



Municipality of San Juan
(Commonweahh of Puerto Rico)
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-
Othe r G ov e rn me ntal Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 5

To.sl
Deprrtment D€partmcn! human ¡nd ürblD IndepandeDt spccial nonmajor
ofjustice ol labor scrüces dcvclopment capitel Rctiremeni spcc¡¡l rcvcnuc

fund fund fund fund fund fund community funds

1,438.872 5,462,4t6 189,t62

12,02 r s

t0,875,6 r 5

5,925,42s
l,821,586

t4,990

: t 8.7 t 8.216
5.925.425

- s 2.969 $

45.208.1l9 53,122,446

REVE{UES:
Intcrcsts on d€posits
Inrcrgovornmcntal grants and contribürionsl

Fcdcr¡l
Local

Misc.ll¡n.ol§ rcveru€s
Total rév.nEs

EIPE{DITUR6 :

C-rancral Bovcrnment
Public sÁfcly
Urb6n ¡ffairs
Cullorc and recrc¡tion
Heálth and \rclfare
Urbsr¡ devclopmcot
Bconomic dcvclopm€nt
Bducation

Capitaloutlays
Dcbl sarvice

Principsl
lnicrcr

Totsl.xpcnditures

EXCBS (DT¡ICIE{CY) OF REVE{UES
OVEn (UNDM) EXPE{DIIURE;

OlHB NNANCING SOURCES (USES):

Tránsfcr froh othcr Sov.rnmcnt rl fúds
Transf.r ro orhlr Sovcmmcntal turds

Tolalothcr fin¡ncing sourccs (uscs), net

NEI INCREAS E (DECREA§E) IN FT]ND

BALANCE

TUND BALANCE ATBEGINNINC OF
YEAR

FT'ND BAI.JINCE ATEND OFYEAR

16,466
592,t-22

84,382

.
425.485

38,293

o,,ro.r98
1,200.529

t27.O83

'7.2t 5.9-93

,,orr,r-0,

29.60t,t26
47,187

142,654
1,154

45,204.925
436.510

2,257,505

5 57.35 8

212,119
718.096

4,r 25,000
t94,28t

70

,.orr,i,,
r,087,349

|,s12.427
384,885

6,'t 15,960
28.800

2,231,712

246,t25
7,373,00t
),621,t11

,,oor,i'r,

47 8,143
201,t72

9.246,307
978,16t

53.828.862
465.3¡0

13.602,608
239,951

5,997,452
39,414,)24
2,939,l6u

4,603.143
395.453

26l,Ot? (3?,887) (739.336) 1439,442',) (1,357,828) (3,546.583) (2ró.6r l) (6.417.6tO)

(828.412) o,357,828)

11,520.329

2.59ó,001

( t ,'7 40,',7 9 5)

(216,611)

I,478,885

65 3,830

16.557,4t3

(33,ó96) 251,884

448,515 386,657 714,6',76 3,689,146

691,Oó7 $ 352,961 S t,026,560 $ 2,A60.674 S

79

t0,162,501 $ 855,206 $ t,262,214 $ t1,211,243
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Statistical Section
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

This part of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Information Repof presents detailed information as a

context for understanding what the govemmental activities information in the basic financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Municipality's overall financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.

Page

FINANCIAL TRENDS
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the Municipality's financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
Municipality's most significant local revenue sources, the property tax
and municipal license tax.

DEBT CAPACITY
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the Municipality's current levels of outstanding debt and
the Municipality's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment withi¡ the Municipality's financial
activities take place.

OPERATING INFORMATION
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Municipality's financial report
relates to the services the govemment provides and the activities it
performs.

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports and/or the basic financial statements for
the relevant fiscal year. Certain items were reclassified to conform to the current yea.r

presentation.

Note: The laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico establish strict
confidentiality requirements about taxpayer's and employer's information.
Accordingly, this statistical section does not include information about the ten
principal taxpayers of property taxes and municipal taxes, and information about
principal private employers.

8l-86

97 -92

98-100

93-95

96-57
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Net Position by Component - Govemmental Activities
Last Ten Fiscal Years

201120132014

Nf,TPOSmONT

Net investme[t iÍ capitalassets

Restricted

U¡lreslricted

Totsl

$299,649,066 $ 333,037,01r $385,429,545 §248,446,831 $273,582,ó83 $252,341,458 $202,598,4]l $203,410,069 $ 231,536,167 $ 262,474,334

55,135,650 r04,887,271 99,003,313 84,79t,416 52.861,932 43,547,515 33,521,750 19,637,401 91,029,309 96,732,264

13 t6,242,583

43,475,745) $ (75,239,893) $ 46,096,268
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Riro
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
l,ast Ten Fiscal Years

$ t76,327 $ 8,197,061 $

8,332,507 14,016.266

28.52t.493 fl.098.271)

14,126 S 20,554 §

95,760 2,645

(99,182) |27,161\

15,619 S 7,517 $

3.297 3.296

245 5,118

(35.345) (34.370)

2,876 $ 37,435 $ 22,8',75 $ 68,098

461 3,1',76 3,m9 4,181

r,544 983 494 98

(23.328) (61.105) (56,430) (104.350)

$ 37,038,327 $ 21,175,05ó S 10,704 s 004,562) $ (6,184) $ (8,439) $ 09,511) $ (30,032) s (31,1',13)08,447) $

GenemlFu¡d,i

Noncpendible

Rerricted

Commilt€d

Unr€stricred

Tolll gencr¡l fünd

All Orher govmÍEnrol fundsl:

Nonspendrbl€

Restrictcd

Commilled

Total ¡ll olhcrsortn¡menlal funü

$ 4,719,832 s 5,530,872 $ $

195,326,010 176,593,758 202J53

0,833,072) 05,547,020) (6,243)

12,269 $ 47 $

40,574 42474

'71,512 r3l,887

(5,2r l) (4,9ór)

10,418 $

82,238

¡10,949

(7,645)

l0,9lr s

56,888

64,147

(9,28',7)

11,404 $

48.204

63,9t2

(5,363)

1,988 $ 2,264

60.8¡5 54,308

53,831 81,130

(7,910) (6,05 r)

$ 19E.232.770 § ló6,577,610 $ l8ó,7t0 $ t95,960 $ r22,ó59 $ ll E, r57 S t25,204 $ t69,447 $ ¡08,70ó $ Bt,651

Note 1: The Municipality implemented GASB Statements No. 54 as ofJuly 1, 2008. Fund balance classifications are presented in this schedule to
conform to the provisions of this statement by reclassifying fund balances for all prior periods presented.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Ftmds (in Thousands)
last Ten Fiscal Years

2008200920132015 2014 2012 ml1 2010 2lm1 2006

REVENT'ES

Property ta¡esr $

M unicipal license taxcsl

Sales and usagc taxes?

Construction e)cise taxesl

Charges for services

Interests on deposits

Intergov€rnment al grants and contribulions:

Federal

lrcal
M iscellaneous revenues

223,889

133,669

64,657

33,970

54,186

4,E4t

I18,?21

36,934

5,030

$ 241,423

lzt,414

6t,323

22,868

50.048

6,048

I I1,375

41,534

4,30r

$ 214,752

I 18.,102

58,033

13,640

50,808

1,360

t29,284

38,648

13,048

$ 260,2 t7

125.998

56,876

t8,858

48,834

3,871

133,299

42,211

5,251

$ 237,819

153,975

56,405

2r,986

68,300

2,565

142,589

18,259

6,64s

$ 238,690

157,380

54,487

16,63't

59,533

3,884

't24,905

3t,919

4,963

$ 214,652

156,033

54,646

28,5't t

58,071

5,386

105,431

36,492

4,4t9

s 2t7,728

t49,947

54,799

47,896

51,142

6,689

109,857

36,832

'7,982

$ 217.513 S 206.395

145,599 I3l,369

4t,362

29,110 23,490

48,045 53,500

't,769 5.933

f0?,605 112,241

28,746 39,59'7

35,122 3,261

6'75,891 660.354 657,9"t6 695,415 't28,541 663.701 684,812 660,931 575,788692.458Totals

D(PENDIITJRtrS

General government

Public safety

Urban affairs

Culture and recreation

Health and welfare

Urban development

FJonomic development

Education

Cap ital outlays

Debt service:

Principal

fnterests

Totals

B}ENDITI]RES OVER REVE{I]ES

122,986

56,912

122,631

13,4',/5

186,412

8;l02

16,991

55,461

33,456

58,149

41,546

I 16,716

56,942

t27,033

15,368

196,816

7,198

16,863

52,609

29,168

89,572

44,U4

95,492

63,513

62,116

15,578

24t,t42

52,054

19.162

18,032

61,888

70.645

11,842

144,37 |

64,907

'78,6't2

16,558

246,398

50,597

15,231

1s,522

55,834

58,230

28,3t1

150,800

61,306

67,800

t6,2\3

259,064

51,826

20,521

18,996

39,838

55,759

3t,801

138,345

60,293

14,115

18,371

253,358

48,624

19,956

19,909

48,527

50,126

30,306

109,552

s',t,950

16,818

252,948

49,336

18,537

15,332

77,091

47,624

35,459

144,331

52,950

12,028

12,988

246,912

45,088

19,247

l) )aa

43,039

4 t,91 I

31,646

170,590 95,055

52,507 50,081

61,551 51,716

11,M7 t2,655

239,081 24't,2t4

55,008 49,013

21,741 21,214

ll,106 9,164

14,781 32,130

40,385 35,157

33,61I 28,140

1t6,721 752,329 713.724 7',t7,633 773,926 762,530 755,875 722,411 137,816 631,539

(40,E24)$(91,975)$(75,748)S(82,218)$(45,383)$(70,072)$(92,174)$(37,539)$(76,885)$(61,751)
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Riro
Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds (in Thousands)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

200920tt20122015 2014 20t3 2010 2008 2001 2006

OTHm. HNANCING SOURCE§ (US$)¡

Transfers from govermental funds $

Bonds payable issued

Note payable issued

Adva¡ces from CRIM

Transfers to propietüy fund

Sale ofcapital assets

Tra¡sfers to governmental funds

(l,018) (2,904) (r,967)

3'7,494 §

89,360

24,r02

85,220

$ 7,s03

183,?30

26;138

25,386

$ 6,428

63,035

$ 9,368

28,650

$ 19

31,350

24,655

68',7

6,021

(1e)

$ 15,826 $

t26,395

$ 5,749 $ 13,874

t08,800 44,941

(31,494) (24,t02) (7,s03) (1s,826) (6,428) (9.368) (s.149)

t0;7 4t

(r3,874)

88,342 82,3t6 r8 r,763 126,395 52,124 63,035 28,650 108,800 55,682 62;113

20,345

Total

S PECIAL IIUT4

NET INCREASE (DECREA§ D IN

TI]ND BAIANCE

Debt service as a percentage ofnon-capital

ependitures

47,s18 $ (9,659) $ 106,016 $ 44,t77 $ 6,14t $ (7,03',7) $ (63,524) $ 71,26r $ (21,203) $

l4.6Ea 18.5Eo l8.4Va t3.67o ll.9Ío ll.37o l2.2Vo 10.87" 10.5V" t0.5Vo

(conchrded)

Note 1: The municipality licenses tax rates were substantially revised 2010 resulting in an increase of 107o ofthis tax revenue from 2010 from prior year.

Note 2: A new sales and usage taxes was effective in 2007.

Note 3: The construction excise tax rates were substantially revised in 2005 and a new hotel room tax was effective in 2007, br¡t was eliminated in 2009.

Note 4: License and permits together with flnes and fodeitures were presented as pa¡t ofcharges for services in 2013.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Property Tax l-evies and Colkcrtons
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collecúed within the flscal Year of
the I¿w

Totat C-ollectio¡s to Date

Tax Leried for the
Flscal Year Flscal Year A.mount

Collectio¡u in
Percentageof Subequent

Lew Year
Percetrtage of

I¡ryADunt

20151

ml4.
20t3

m2
201I

nrc
N
?¡08

N7
2W

2Í3,214542

3,214542

2Á3,214,542

299,36L852

2Q744,836

239352,137

2i,ü35,ffi
237 J',19,692

D2453,686

222,453,686

t59,169,65't

t59,769,65't

t59,769,65't

201,3769&

t76,74/.,5@

l@,24t,49

147,81,065

185,9m,468

1 ,358,542

192,225;188

$ »3,954,3U

223,9543U

»3,9543U

256,453,379

225,083,790

ni,933,732

1 ,314,913

2t'7,n3J49

2|,824;179

ñ7;193,994

ñ.7M $ e,1u,727

fi.1w. &,t%,1n
fi.1Wo ,l%,1n
67 .n% 55,076,419

fi.n% 4&$9,4t
6.95% fi,692,233

6.299t $,ffi,W
78.18% 3t,3n,Al
8737% t7,6,231
86.41% 15,568,206

85.08%

85.08%

85.08%

85.6t%

85.6t%

92.M
88.ü2%

91.38%

95.»%

93.41%

Source: Municipal Revenue Collection Center.

Note l: The figures for 2014 and 2015 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily
available and could not be obtained from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Assessed Value of Taxable Propert¡
lnst Ten Fiscal Years

Fis cal

Year
Gmss

Valuation

Exempted

Value

Exone rated

Value

Net Assessed Tax Efiective

Value Rafe

20153

2014t

20t3
20122

201 11

20t01

zUD
2008

2007

2M

$ 26,627,930

26,62'1,930

29,317,201

28,880,260,000

28J46,074,321

27,698A72,939

4205,118,698

4.25 l .598.060

4230,ffi,8s2
4,127,182$83

$ 3,,107,150

3y'07,150

3,,107,150

2:776,2M,488

2,763,305fi4
2,4t9,71511t

453,t99,976

397,563,359

397,563,359

348,451,@

$ 8,889,249

8,889,249

8,889,249

8,814,054,942

8:7'13,ñ2,4t)6

8J73,878,912

875,713,532

877,948279

877948279

855,064,963

$ 14,33 r,531

14,33 r,53 r

r7020.8ü2

I 7,290,000.570

t12@,ffi,447
16.504.878.556

2,876,205,1%

2,976,086422

2,955,t532t4
2,923,665A80

8.l5%o

8.15%

8.15%

8.t5%
8.15Vo

7.O17a

7.757c

7.9950

7.53Vc

7.6l%a

Source: Municipal Revenue Collection Center.

Note: The actual value of taxable property tax has not been reported since the current property tax law
imposes the tax based on the assessed value at 1957 market prices.

Note l: On July 10, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealrh of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 37 for
the purpose of, among others, increasing the real property assessed value by ten times and increasing the
exempt portion of real property tax from the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value to $ 150,000. These provisions
are effective only for fiscal years 2010, 201 I and 2OlZ.

Note 2: The figures for 2012 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily
available. However, the management of the Municipality concluded that the estimates for 2012 would not
significantly differ from actual figures.

Note 3: The figures for 2014 and 2015 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not
readily available and could not be obtained from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center.
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Muni.cipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Property Tax Rates
bst Tm Fiscal Years

m5
m4
2013

m2
2fr11

2010

2W
2008

2ú7
zffi

Real Pmpe rty
FiscaI

Year
General

Pur?oses

Debt Government
Senices of Puerto Rico Tofal

6.úVo

6.Wo
6.ú7a

6.úVo

6.ffi%o

6.ú7o

6.úVo

6.üVo

6.$Va

6.N%o

l.03Vo

1.O7Vo

1.O\Vo

l.O3Vo

1.03Vo

1.03Vo

1.O3Vo

1.O3Vo

L.O37o

l.O3Vo

10.537o

1O.53Vo

lO.53Vo

l0.53Vo

l0.53Vo

9.03V0

9.O37o

9.O370

9.O37o

9.03Vo

350%
3.50V0

3.50Vo

3SMo

3.SOVo

2.úVo

2.ffi%o

2.úVo

2.úVo

2.úVo

Personal Pmperty
Fiscal

Year

General Debt Government
Purposes §ervices ofPueÉo Rico Total

2or5

m4
2013

2012

nll
2010

2W
2008

N7
2ffi

4.ú7a
4.úVo

4.0,70

4.ü1o
4.NVo

4.ú7o
4.üVo

4.N%o

4.W%
4.W%

3.50Vo

3.5O7o

3.SWo

3.SMo

3SWo

2.@Vo

2.úVo

2.@Vo

2.úVo

2.úVo

l.O37o

l.O37o

l.O37o

t.o3?o

1.O31a

7.03Vo

1.O3Vo

7.O3Va

l.O3Vo

1.O39o

8.537o

8.53Vo

8.537o

8.53Vo

8.53Vo

7.037o
't.03%

7.O31o

''t.03vo

7 .O3?a

Source: Finance Department of the Municipality of San Juan.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipal Licenses Tax Filers by Income l,evel
lnst Ten Fiscal Years

Income
(In thousands)

$5 - $1,000

$1,000 - $100,000

Over $100,000

Income
(In thousands)

$5 - S1,000

$1,000 - s100,000

Over $100,000

Income
(In thowands)

20ts
Percentage

of Tolal
Number
of File rs

22,3W

34

89;727a

l0.14Vo

O.l4Vo

13.59Vo

55.99Va

30.42%

Percentage
of Tot¿l

22,180
) 

^)<
25

XJ.057c

9.85Vo

o.t0E
24,630 100.00%

Number
of File rs

2013
Pe rce ntage

of Total

$5 - s1,000

$1,000 - $100,000

Over $100,000

Income
(In thousands)

22,89{)

2!t3
23

90.38V,

9.537c

0.úVo

$s - $1,000

$1,000 - $1m,000

Over $100,000

Income
(In thousands)

22,869

2,342

2l

n.$%
9.28Vc

o.o8%

Totallncome Percentage
(In thousands)

$ 3,477,81I

13,335280

3,821924

of Total

Total Income
(In thousands)

16.85Vo

&.62Vc

18.52Vo

-) .NE"

Per,centage

of Total

$5 - $1,000

$1,000 - $1m,000
Over $100,000

22,76
2,324

l8

9O.679o

9.26qa

0.üVo

$ 3525,611 17.117a

13959,370 67.77Vo

3,114563 15.12Vo

lú.WVo $ 20599544 lC[,Wo

24,865 lm.trtq.

Number
of File rs

2014
Perrentage

of Total

Totallncome Percentage
(In thousands)

$ 3,528,570

14,541,178

7,901,534

$ 25,971,282

of Total

Total Income
(In thousands)

$ 3J10,154

13034,891

5,323937

j0p..NE"_

Percentage
of Total

l6.05Vc

59.6OVc

24.14E

lffi.NVo

25,232 lOO.WIa

Number
of Filem

20tt
Percentage

of Total

Total Income
(In tho¡¡sands)

$ 3.555.701 16.89Va

13,578,014 &.517c

3912912 t8.59vc

25,326 l0[.Wc 21,M6,627 lffi.ú?c

Numbe r
ofFilers

2012
Pe rce ntáge

of Total

90
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipal Licenses Tax Fílers by Income Level
hst Ten Fiscal Years

\t/

Income
(In thousands)

Number
of Filers

2010
Pe rce ntage

ofTotal
Totallncome Percentage
(In thousands) ofTotal

$5 - $1,000

$1,000 - $100,000
Over $10OO00

Income
(In thousands)

$5 - $1.000

$1,000 - $100,000
Over $1fi),000

Income
(In thousands )

$5 - $1,000

$1,000 - $100,000
Over $10O,000

Income
(In thous ands)

90.t7E"
9.1OVo

o.13qa

2008
Pe rce ntáge

ofTotal

$ 3.458.912

13,2@,438

6,777,072

'24246,774

Pe rce ntage
ofTotal

20422
2,198

29

9O.17Va

9.1OVo

o.13Eo

l4.72Vo

56.44Vo

28.84Vo

Number
of File rs

20422
2,198

29
22,&9

22,@9 IOO.OOVo $ 235m122 l0[.NVo

2009
Percentage Totallncome Pe rce ntage

ofTotalofTotal (In thousands)

§ 3,458,912

13,264,438

6,777,012

_§___4,5@422_

Total Income
(In thous ands)

$ 3,649,010

13,76t,a94
3,139,838

_§__25sol42_

Total Income
(In thousands)

$ 3,5s1,983

13,405§25
2,a76,175

IOO.OOVo IOO.OOVo

____-4;!!_ __tú.N%_ roo.oo%

____22503_

Number
of f ile r"s

l00.AOVo 19,833,183 10,0.u)Eo

Total Income
(In thousands)
$ 3,402,152

t3,620,162
7,224,400

14;72Vo

56.44%

28.84Va

Numl¡er
of f ilers

20,987

2,347

20

89.86Vo

1O.O5Vo

O.@Vo

17.76Vo

66.97Vo

15.28Vo

Number
of File rs

2007
Pe rcentage

of Total
Percentáge

ofTotal
17.91Vo

67 -59Vo

14.5OVo

Pe rce ntage
of Total
14.O3Vo

56.17Vo

29.8OVo

__1OO.wE_

(Concluded)

$5 - $1,000

$1,000 - s100,000
Over $100,0O0

Income
(In thousands)

$5 - $1,0m
$1,000 - $100,000

Over $10O,0O0

2006
Pe rre ntáge

of Total
88.90Va

lO.94Va

O.169o

20,131

2,354
l8

89.46Vo

lO.46Va

o.o8Eo

t7 js1
2,185

32

19,974 l0Ú.NVo

Source: Fi¡ance Depafment of the Municipality of San Juan.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipal Licenses Tax Rates
lnst Ten Fiscal Years

Financial Br¡sinesses Non-Financial Businesses

Fiscal Year All 1987 Special under $1
Law million

$1 million 1987 Special
a¡rd over Law

2015

20t4
20t3
20t2
20tt
2.4rc
2.ñ9
2m8
2.N7
2ffi

l.5OVo

1.5OVo

I.5O9o

l.5OVo

1.5OVo

1.5OVo

l.5O9o

l.5OVo

l.5OVo

l.5O9o

l.OOVo

l.ú7o
l.ú9o
l.úVo
l.OOVo

l.úVo
l.OOVo

l.úVo
l.úVo
l.ú9o

O.2O9o

O.2OVo

o.2.4?o

o.2.4?o

O.2O9o

O.2OVo

O.2OVo

O.2OVo

O.2O7o

O.2O9o

O.SOVo

O.SOVo

O.SOVo

O.SOVo

O.5OVo

O.5OVo

O.5OVo

O.SOVo

O.5O7o

O.SOVo

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

O.3O7o

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

O.3OVo

Sou¡ce: Finance Department of the Municipality of San Juan.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type in Thausands, Except Per Capita Amount
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2tt4 2013 20tt 2010

(ln Thousands)

Bonds payable

Bonds anticipation notes

Mortgage payable

Notes payable

Obügations under capital leases

Total

Percentage of personal incofrr

Total long-tefmdebt per capital

Bonds payable pe¡ capital

P€rccntage ofbonds payable of
net asse§sed value ofprope¡ty

2,382 3,062 3,465 3,836

442,056 40t,170 213,966 228,856

$ 399,783 $

2,144

506,193

436,5er $ 47e,437_ $ 47e,43't- S ,i:ill t 410,636 s 384,158 $ 38e,682 $ 384,7e4 $ 367,07s

4,17',7 4,490 4,7'.78 5,M2 5,285

217,525 230,781 3,28',7 182,794 194,499

65'7 1,800 3,016

$ 908,120 s 881,029 $ 883,669 $ 696,868 $ 628,7m s 632,338 S 6ú,49 $ 638,404 $ 574430 $ 569,875

t4.O54o

$ ¿491 $

$ 1,096 $

2;t

l2.U% l0.91co 9.92% 4.1 t% 4.97% 5.70% 5.8390 6.65%

¿382 $ 2,235 S 1,788 $ 1,590 $ r,4?8 $ 1,445 $ 1,486 $ 1,334 S 1,320

1,180 $ 1,213 $ 1,230 $ ryl$ 960 $ 896 $ 907 $ 893 S 850

2.821k 2.7'l9o 2.294o 2.49% 13.36%2.57qo t3.@% 13.02V. 12.56%

Note 1: Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics.
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Municipality of San Juan
Cotnmonwealth of Puerto Rito
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

In thousands Pe rcentage of
Asse ssedLess: GO's

Fiscal
Ye ar

2015

2014

2013

20122

2Ol 13

20lq
2W
2008

2m7
2W

3«,42
369,938

395,3'2Á

389,714

395,3',26

4n,789
428,765

429,743

430J24

431,707

39,291 $

70,965

63,712

66§49

35,463

19,6n
I1,201

14,524

9AM
r0,355

3ñ,492
36s,626

415,725

413,388

358,67s

391,009

372,957

375,158

375,3W

356,720

5.58Vo

5.65Vo

6.MVo

6.51Vo

2.67Va

3.147o

2.9910

3.35Vo

3.817o

4.16Vo

25.2Vo

25.SVo

24.47o

2.39Vo

2.O\Vo

2.37 Vo

't2.979a

12.6lVo

12.7OVo

12.20Vo

989

988

1,052

1,061

907

914

870

8'73

872
82_6

Gene ral Debt Total Per,centage Value Bonded

Net Assessed Obligation Service Bonded ofPersonal ofTaxable Debt Per
Popr¡lationz Valueo Bonds Funds Debt Incor¡re Pmpe rty Capitall

$ ll33,ls3 $ 399,783 $
1,433,t53 436,591

1,702,080 479137

17,290,N1 479A37

t7,2ú,666 394,t38
16,504,879 410,636

2,876,2fr5 384,158

2.976.086 389,682

2,95s,153 384,794

2,923,66s 367,075

Source: Municipal Revenue Collection Center

Note l: Details regarding the Municipality's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

Note 2: Population data can be found in the accompanying Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistic. The figures for 2014 and 2Ol5
disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available and could not be obtained from the Municipal Revenue Collection
Center.

Note 3: On July 10,2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 37 for the purpose of, among others, increasing
the real property assessed value by ten times and increasing the exempt portion of the real property tax from the first $15,000 of the assessed value

of $150,000. These provisions are effective only for fiscal years 2010, 2011 añ 2012,

Note 4: The net assessed value figures for 2014 and 2015 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Legal Debt Margin Information (in Thousands)
I-ast Ten Fiscal Years

t galDebt Ma¡gin Calcul¡tiol¡ as ofJune 30, mls:

Ass$§ed V¡lue of Taxable Propefy

teg¡ldebt limit - 10% of¡sBe3sed value oftDoble property

D€br applicable to limit:

CÉneml obügations bonds

LEssiCO's Debt Service Fund b¡l¡nce

l¡ss: Other ¡djus tÍEnts, including adjustÍicnt§ made pursuont to Acts No, 18

¡r¡d No, 19ofJaru¿ry 24, 2014.

Tot¡l ret debt applic¡ble to limit

L.g¡l debt flEr8in

w
§ 2,62,793

5,916

<39,»t)

1,606,798

2,473,483

tegaldebt limitr

2015 2014 20t3 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

§ 2,662,193 $ 2,f62,793 $ 3,143,881 $ 2,4?4,638 $ 2,sr5,932 § 2,769,U7 $ 420,512 $ 425,1fi § 423,67 S 412,11A

Tor¡toetdebt applic¡ble to limir 12,413,483) (365,626) (845,119) (413,388) (358,6?5) (391,m9 On,957) (375,158) (375,390) (356,1n)

$ 189.310

$ 189,310 § 2,»7,161 $ 2,298.162 $ 2,061,250 § 2,1s1,2s1 $ 2,378,838 $ 47,555 $ 50,002 $ 41,617 S 55,998l¿g¡l debt Í¡¡rgin

Note: Under Puerto Rico law, the Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 10 percent of total assessed property value.

By law, the general obligation debt subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying general bond obligations.
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Municipality oÍ San luan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Demo graphic and Economic Statistic s
l,ast Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Pe rs onal Per
Populationr Income Capital

Inflation
Rate 2 Employme nt3

Unemployment
Rate g

20154

20144

2013

2012

2fr11

2010

2xn9

2008

2x07

2M

3U,622
369,938

395,326

389,714

395,326

4n,789
428,765

429,743

430,724

431,707

$ 17,732

17,478

17,413

16,300

16,031

31,380

29,056

26,O82

»,859
19,860

O.90Vo

O.90Vo

O.907o

1.307o

1.\AVo

2.N%o

8.NVo

11.40Vo

14.10Vo

15.10?o

138,700

126,000

126,700

135,600

134,900

139,900

150,000

157,400

165,400

172,600

7 .70V0

9.9OVo

9.10Va

11.00Vo

11.7j%o

11.90Vo

9.@Vo

8.O3Vo

7 .40V0

6.707o

6465,4773M
6165,7763&
6,883,811,638

6.352338.2W

6,337,471,1M

13A24,Ot3,893

12,458,000,705

11.208,632.880

9,845,941,714

8.573.772.511

Note: 1. Federal Census Bureau and Puerto Rico Planning Board.

2, Covernment Development Bank of Puerto Rico.

3. Department of Labor and Human Resources of Commonwealth.

4. Information for 2014 and 2015 was estimated.

2015 Population Density
Population

Square Per Squart

Miles Mile
47.8 7,628
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Construction and Bank Deposits
I-ast Ten Fiscal Years

Comme rcial Construction Reside ntial Construction Bank Deposits

Calendar

year

2015

2014

2Dt3

?fr12

z0l1
2Dt0

2ffi
2008

?N7
2m6

Notes:

2,@,594 $

2,@3,196

6:t33p2
2916,«s

s94548

435,135

214,812

1,163963

618,033

2tfr9s2

676,884 $

42387
2,3ffi,150

1,641,086

726,649

625,596

1,013914

2,350,ffi
3fr6,818
2.826J17

of dollarc)

$ 2Á,6nA88

25,635,425

29,@5,189

301s4,3s8

29,818;7n

32,599,3%

43,3M,458

4,478,594

40,568,156

39,934,3N

Square Value in
feet ofsite (thousands

approved ofdollars)

Square Value in Value in
feet ofsite (thousands (thousands

approved ofdollars)

121,015

181,810

l't2,591

320,833

65,400

5t,136

14,608

t 1,561

38,891

6,558

43,396

22223

nJ6
98,45
43,599

37536

fi,525
182,376

83,43
$3Jq

l. Ofñce of Permits of the Muntipality of San Juan.

2. Commissioner of Financial lnstitutions.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Number of Regular Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013 20123 20tt 2010 20092 2007 L 2006

Function
General government

Public safety

Urban affairs

Cultu¡e and recreation

Heafth and welfare

Urban development

Economic development

Education

Total

158 272

236 254

42 50

272 321

50 40

321 405

499 647

I,319 1,506

721. 1,098

147 193

2,522 3,187

87 113

365 451

123 136

516 469 438 517 s17 559

1,085 I,140 I,176 1,389 1,389 1,349

1,049 1,076 924 t,@2 1992 1,208

195 221 258 305 305 332

1,568 2,346 2,237 2,643 2,643 2,«2

557

1,329

1,189

330

2,604

40

402

358

493

1,270

758
161

) Aqq

34

349

l3l1,089 128 113 133 133 144

5,896 5906 s,4ñ 6,450 6A50 6,679 6,809 5,695 5,783 7,331

Source: Office of Human Resources of the Municipality of San Juan.

Note: A regular employee is scheduled to work 1,820 hours per year. (7 hours per day by 52 weeks) including, among others, holidays, vacation and

sick leave.

Note l: The Municipality provided two (2) voluntary termination programs that were effective during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. A total
of 1,1 17 employees retired through such programs.

Note 2: The Municipality charged the status of all temporary and irregular employees to regular employees beginning as of July l, 2008 and

thereafter. A total of 1,486 employees were reclassified.

Note 3: On April 4, 2013 Law No. 3 as enacted to amend the provision of Law No. 447 of l95l Know as the Retirement System Law No. 3 modified,
among other things, the retirement eligibility requirements of all governmental employees. A significant reduction in the workforce of the

Municipality was experienced during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 due to the effects of law No. 3.
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Municipality of San Juan
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Operating Indicators by Function
l,ast Ten Fiscal Years

Flscal Year
2009201S 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2008 2007 2006

I\¡nctio¡r
Pubüc safety

Police officers

Police tr¿inings3
F,rErgency trainings

Urban affairs

Walkside construction (üneal ft .)

Waste dis po s al collected (ton.)

C\lture and recreation

Cultural events3

Attendance3
ElrollrrEnt on sport training

Health and welfare

Hospital adm¡ssions

Average length ofstay
Welfare center pa¡t icipants

Head Stan enrollrEnt
Urban developnEnt

Permits and endorsenEnts3
Economic developrEnt

CorrrÉrcial spaces leased

&lucation
College EnrollrEnt
High School Enrollrnent
Elenpntary School F¡rollrrÉnt

983 1,009

46 46

23,166

210,:U5 205,489

l,t4l I,135

100 158

»'7 220

46,84't 28,510

221.18',7 230,462

I t9 72

n/¡ 243,68'7

nla 145,230

4.359 4,439

77
t9,$1 9,186

4.399 4.431

5,639 4.630

220 215

|,120 t,192
284 242

190 I58

I,ll2 I,I90
t25 t72
2t"t 196

40,904 30,028

240,665 238,899

150 1m
182,444 160, t«)
8,033 15.591

4,824 5,r0?

66
6,226 5,t53
4,287 4,412

1,536 1.713

265 249

1,184 853

I r5
I t0

m3
46

52

804

200,1t5

l4l

61,325

4,911

6

l0,5ll
3,625

3,800

230

l,606
296

4ú

l4l

24,946

I,r4l
r00
297

46,841

221,187

lt9

4.359

7

19,697

4,399

5,639

220

1,720

2U
190

I,l0 r

112

t6l

36,822
232,435

t35
554,0@

48,229

4,805

1

8,814

43U

1.1t3

218

t,355

165

240

r,133

225
149

46,837

235,219

155

185,455

16,525

4,912

7

1,6t0
4,415

1,386

236

t4t

5,t t4 4,831

16
15,364 t8,452

3,125 3,914

3,800 53s

2l t1l

1,633 l,570
326 267

311 40r

1,357

t20
153

Source: Office of Management and Budget of the Municipality of San Juan.

Note l: No operating indicators are available for the general government function.

Note 2: The figures for 2012 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available. However, the management ofthe
Municipality concluded that the estimates for 2012 would not significantly differ from actual figures.

Note 3: The figures for 2014 and 2015 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available.
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Municipality of San Juan
Cotnmonwealth of Puerto Riro
Capital Assets by Funcüon (In thousands)
l-a,st Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscsl Year
201§ 2008 2006

Function
Pubüc safety

Policei

Stations and substations

P¡trol unitss

EÍ¡ergency:

Eñergency unit3

Urban affaiN

Highways and streets (lineal miles)3

Public works unils3

Culturc 6nd recreation

Parks

Cultufc centefs3

Health ¡r¡d welfárc

Hospital
M€dic¡l centers

Mobile units

Community centers

Head Start enters
Urban development

Urban centers

Economic development

Conifil€rcial spaces

M ain event venues,

Education

Co¡lege

High School

Elemeotary School

l9
I,198

98

1,021

1,354

246
6

t4
1,198

9E

1,027

1,354

330

6

24

601

97

1,231

t,300

512
6

2

1l
5

't4

4

231

3l

21

419

83

1,231

1,425

512
5

2

9

8

43

75

4

25t
3l

21

419

83

1,231

t,425

512

5

2

9

8

43

15

4

251

3l

27

4,120

83

1,231

\342

365

4

2

9

I
38

75

4

l5

25

49t

88

916
1,298

365

4

2

9

8

38

15

4

251

14

I
I
I

26

483

'74

853

1,305

365

4

2

9

8

38

75

408

ó6

853

l,321

347

4

2

9

8

38

19

20

518

55

853

1,289

347

4

2

9

8

3l
11

444

249 278 240
965

2

l0
4

30

16

4

258
31

I
ll
4

26

7t

4

274

3l

Source: Various Municipality's departments.

Note 1: No capital assets statistics are available for the general government function.

Note 2: The figures for 2012 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available. However, the management ofthe
Municipality concluded that the estimates for 2012 would not significantly differ from actual figures.

Note 3: The figures for 2014 and 2015 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available.
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